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Chairman’s Statement
ITE®/RE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present to you the annual report for the year ended 31 March
2018 of AUX International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together to be referred to as the “"Group”).

BUSINESS & FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's strategy in enhancing it's earning profile by
expanding into property management services business through
acquisition of Ningbo AUX Property Management Services Co.,
Ltd (“"Ningbo AUX") has proved to be a success. During the
year under review, the Group's revenue recorded a increase
of approximately 160.9% from HK$102.8 million last year to
HK$268.2 million this year. This encouraging result was mainly
due to the revenue contribution from the newly acquired Ningbo
AUX recorded at HK$167.3 million during the year and revenue
from our club portfolio remained stable at HK$100.9 million
compared to HK$102.8 million last year.

Since the acquisition of the Ningbo AUX, the number of projects
managing by the Group had expanded from 21 projects to 32
projects with an aggregate contracted GFA increased from 3.14
million square meters to 5.33 million square meters (“sgq.m.”).

While the Group enjoys positive contribution from its property
management services business of HK$16.4 million, the Group's
loss was affected by the increase in impairment losses of
HK$1.3 million recognised for the clubbing business during the
year, increase in net foreign exchange loss of HK$6.4 million
and increase in advertising and marketing expenses of HK$3.7
million as compared to last year. The loss before taxation of
the Group hence only slightly improved by approximately 11.5%
from HK$28.8 million last year to HK$25.5 million this year.

The Group endeavors to maintain healthy development of the
clubbing business segment and strive to offer its customer
extraordinary clubbing experience. Therefore, with the Group
is confident that the performance of our property management
services can mitigate the short-term financial impact the
temporary closure of Magnum Club may have on the Group's
performance, on 8 January 2018, the Group announced its
renovation plan and temporary closure of Magnum Club.
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Chairman’s Statement
ITE®/RE

To further enhance the business portfolio of the property
management segment, the Group has entered a long-term
framework service agreement with Ningbo Mingzhou Hospital, a
subsidiary of Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd (“Ningbo
Sanxing”) to provide medical property management service on
14 February 2018. Ningbo Sanxing, the shares of which are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, has been actively developing
its healthcare services and dedicated to becoming a leading
healthcare service investment and management group in the
PRC. Hence the Group believes that the agreement provides us
an opportunity to leverage on Ningbo Sanxing's expansion of
its healthcare business and opens the window for the Group to
achieve considerable growth in the Group’s medical property
management business in the future.

OUTLOOK

With China’'s property management market continues to
consolidate, the Group sees both challenges and opportunities
in the coming year. To better prepare ourself towards these
opportunities and challenges, the Group aim to create brand
advantages through better service quality and enriching its
service packages with the vision to provide “beautiful living

environment for caring and comfortable life” to our customers.

While the Group is optimistic about the future development
of our property management services segment in the coming
years, the Group will balance its focus between its property
management services segment and its clubbing business
segment. Looking forward, the Group will continue to maintain
its leading position in the Hong Kong clubbing industry through
regular review of existing club’s life cycle and provide upbeat
events to attract its customers.

When opportunity arise, the Group will not preclude the
possibilities of pursuing suitable investment opportunities in
e-commerce, internet information technology and other emerging
industries in order to expand into different income sources.
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Chairman’s Statement
ITE®ME
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On behalf of the board, | would like to thank my fellow directors,
the management and all staff for their hard work and contribution
to the development of the Group in the past year. | would also
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Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEETWEDIN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has been
principally engaged in the operation of clubbing business in
Hong Kong (the “clubbing business segment”) and entered
into property management services in the PRC (the “property
management segment”).

On 7 November 2016, Starry Chance Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement, to
acquire Ningbo AUX Property Management Services Co., Ltd.
("Ningbo AUX"). The conditions precedent for such acquisition
were fully satisfied on 5 May 2017 and Ningbo AUX became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on that date.

Business review — clubbing business segment

The Group currently owns two clubs, namely Magnum Club and
Zentral (the “Clubs”). To solidify Magnum’s position as one of
the nightlife entertainment hotspots in the heart of Lan Kwai
Fong area, Magnum Club is temporary closed for renovation
from 14 January 2018 as one of the customer experience
enrichment measures the Group adopted to increase customer
traffic in the future.

Business review — property management segment

The Group position itself as a complex property management
service provider and provides complete services to various
type of properties, including medium to high-end residential
properties and non-residential properties such as A-class office
buildings, commercial complex, hospitals and industrial parks.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group managed over 32 projects with
gross floor area of approximately 5.33 million square meters.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBHWESN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$268.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018, representing an increase
of approximately 160.9% as compared with approximately
HK$102.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2017. The increase
in revenue was mainly due to positive contribution bought in
from the Group's newly acquired property management services
business, which recorded a revenue of HK$167.3 million from the
property management segment.

Staff Costs

The staff costs comprise salaries, wages, discretionary bonuses,
membership commissions, tips from customers allocated to staff
and other benefits including retirement benefit costs and other
allowances and benefits payable to the permanent staff and part
time staff. The staff costs increased by approximately 327.3%
or HK$82.2 million to approximately HK$107.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2018 from approximately HK$25.1 million
for the year ended 31 March 2017. The increase was mainly
due to the staff costs incurred for the property management
services of HK$75.8 million and increase of HK$6.3 million from
the clubbing business as a result of increase in remuneration
package of the key managements in order to maintain the club’s
competitiveness in human resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

Property Rentals and Related Expenses

The property rentals and related expenses consist of lease
payments under operating leases for the Clubs and the
Group's headquarters. The property rentals and related
expenses decreased by approximately 8.2% or HK$3.0 million
to approximately HK$33.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 from approximately HK$36.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2017. Such decrease was mainly due to decrease in
rental expenses of Hong Kong office.

Advertising and Marketing Expenses

The advertising and marketing expenses primarily consist of
advertising and promotional expenses, such as the cost of
inviting international disc jockeys to the Clubs. The advertising
and marketing expenses increased by approximately 36.6% or
HK$3.7 million to approximately HK$13.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018 from approximately HK$10.1 million for
the year ended 31 March 2017. Such increase was mainly due to
increase in promotion activities in Zentral.

Other operating expenses

The other operating expenses increased by approximately
169.8% or HK$32.1 million to approximately HK$51.0 million for
the year ended 31 March 2018 from approximately HK$18.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2017. The increase was
mainly attributable to the expenses incurred for the property
management business newly acquired during the year, such
expenses include property maintenance, gardening costs,
security costs, utilities and other miscellaneous expenses.

Results for the Year

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
approximately HK$25.5 million, as compared with the Group's
loss of approximately HK$28.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2017. The decrease in net loss was mainly due to
the net impact of the profit contribution from the property
management segment of HK$16.4 million since the acquisition
of Ningbo AUX, which outweighted the increase in impairment
losses recognised for the clubbing business during the year of
HK$1.3 million and the increase in net exchange loss of HK$6.4
million and advertising and marketing expenses of HK$3.7
million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

LIQUIDITY,
GEARING

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$282.3 million (31 March
2017: approximately HK$118.2 million) and approximately
HK$137.1 million (31 March 2017: approximately HK$32.5 million)
respectively, while the current ratio was about 2.1 times
(31 March 2017: 3.6 times).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group maintained cash at bank and
in hand of approximately HK$206.8 million (31 March 2017:
approximately HK$93.6 million). The increase in cash at bank
and in hand was primarily due to the cash and cash equivalent
of approximately HK$146.3 million held by Ningbo AUX, a
wholly-owned subsidiary newly acquired during the year. In
the foreseeable future, the Group expects to fund its capital
expenditures, working capital and other capital requirements
from the net proceeds from the initial public offering (the
"IPO"), the net proceeds from the placing of new shares under
general mandate and cash generated from its operations and
other financing means which the Company may from time to
time consider appropriate.

Total interest-bearing borrowing of the Group as at 31 March
2018 was approximately HK$124.6 million (31 March 2017: Nil),
which was mainly represented by the loan of RMB100,000,000
with a term of five years and an interest rate of 2% per annum
granted by the controlling shareholder of the Company to Starry
Chance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
for the purpose of financing its acquisition of the entire equity
interests in Ningbo AUX. The gearing ratio, which is calculated
by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity, as
at 31 March 2018 was 0.82 (31 March 2017: zero).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 10 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Chung Sun Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
place, through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, a
maximum of 60,000,000 new shares of the Company under
the general mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company on 19 August 2016 to not less than six placees who
are professional, institutional or other investors and who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent
of and not connected with the Company and its connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) at a placing price of
HK$0.91 per share (the "Placing”). The Directors considered
that it was in the interests of the Company to raise capital from
the equity market in order to enhance the capital base of the
Company. The market price of the shares of the Company was
HK$1.11 per share on 10 July 2017, being the date of the placing
agreement and the date on which the terms of the placing were
fixed. All the conditions set out in the placing agreement had
been fulfilled subsequently and the Placing was completed on
2 August 2017 in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement. The gross and net proceeds raised from
the Placing were approximately HK$54.6 million and HK$54.1
million respectively, which were intended to be applied for
supplementing the Group's working capital and for financing
potential investments or acquisitions should the suitable
opportunities arise. The net price to the Company of each
subscription share was approximately HK$0.90. As at the date
of this report, approximately HK$5.1 million of the net proceeds
raised from the Placing had been used to supplement the
Group's working capital. The remaining balance was deposited
in licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong.

The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through maintaining the equity and debt in a
balanced position.

As at 31 March 2018, the capital structure of the Group consists
of equity of approximately HK$151.8 million (31 March 2017:
approximately HK$112.7 million) and loan from controlling
shareholder of approximately HK$123.8 million (31 March
2017: Nil). Except for the loan from controlling shareholder
and obligation under finance lease, the Group had no bank
borrowings, debt securities or other capital instruments as at
31 March 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

On 7 November 2016, Starry Chance Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered in to an equity transfer
agreement (the “Transfer Agreement”) with B R BB X H
R A 7A] (Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd), an entity controlled
by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Under the Transfer Agreement, Starry Chance Limited
agreed to acquire the entire equity interest of Ningbo AUX
at a consideration of RMB153,000,000. The transaction was
completed on 5 May 2017 and Ningbo AUX has become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since then.

Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures during the year ended 31 March 2018.

PROFIT GUARANTEE

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated
28 February 2017 in relation to the acquisition of the Ningbo
AUX (the “Circular”).
stated, shall bear the same meaning as defined in the Circular.

Definition and terms, unless otherwise

Pursuant to the Agreement, Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd
guarantees to Starry Chance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, that the Net Profit for the financial
years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 of
Ningbo AUX shall be not less than RMB15 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$17.1 million) and RMB18 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$20.5 million) respectively. The Profit
Guarantee was met for both years.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD DURING THE
YEAR

To maximise the utilisation of the idle cash without affecting
its operational liquidity and fund security, Ningbo AUX had
subscribed for certain wealth management products (“WMP")
offered by a commercial bank in Ningbo before it became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As at 5 May 2017,
Ningbo AUX property had WMP of approximately HK$105.7
million (approximately RMB%0.0 million). All of the WMP had
been fully redeemed on 14 July 2017.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not hold any wealth
management product.

/; AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 5% &7 Bl B2 2 B2 A R 2 3

MEBARRBMEATN ZERRBIEHE

R-ZT—XE+—AtA KRARZ2ENBERR
EERARAFHBEFRTHEERFRAF (—MH
AN ARG A R BB T S A fe I M F 88 ) 5T 37
s RGE ((BERE]  BRESEGZ =
EFRAREEWEE SRS TN 2 IBE
R A A E#¥153,000,0007T » ZEBEX 52N
T—+tEFRARARR BEFBRITALK
BARQRNEEMBRR -

BREXHBEEN AERERBE-_T—N\F
A=t -HALFEYEETEMNHRBERR

TV AN

BEQARABGLELENEARBALE -
i A 1R &

BHREARBAR-_F—EF_A=-TN\AT
RERMBRBERRR T 2 BEK(ZAEEK]) - R
NERBEN  ERZERLAREZBNR
FIAEEEAEREE -

REZBHE ERERRHEXAERAAMNEL
ERDB(ARANREEEZENBRR) &G
ERRRHBE_ZT-A"F+_A=+—80RK
TELEEFE+ A=+ -BUEMBRFESARER
FRADANAPRARESESET(WITIBES
BT R ARBI8E &L (20588 ET) - M
FRMRBHEEK o

FRAEBEAENEARE

BETNYEKERDESCRESRENBRT
ROFAREES  BERBTHMAEKRABAQR
PEMBRARZA  RBELF—HHERITR
EMNETEVER(EYER]) FTHEERE
MER - E—+ERARERHAENERERD
BBEBI105.78 B (WA RK0EE L) « AT
EEMERER-_Z—tFLtATHAEHE
@ o

RIZE-NF=RA=+—H KrEELTEFEE
o] 32 B EE R o



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's pledged bank deposits was
approximately HK$1.0 million (31 March 2017: approximately
HK$1.0 million).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group intends to conduct more in-depth reviews on the
suitable development strategies for the Group, including the
feasibility of diversifying the income stream of the Group by
exploring different business and investment opportunities in
different business areas such as trading, property management,
big healthcare, internet information technology and other
emerging industries, which may or may not include any assets
and/or business acquisitions or disposals by the Group, and will
consider all options. Any such plans will be subject to review
and approval by the Board and compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules where appropriate.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from Renminbi. Foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in Renminbi for
the entities with a functional currency in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group did not use any forward contracts to hedge its foreign
currency exposure during the year. The Group will from time
to time review and adjust the Group's hedging and financial
strategies based on the RMB and Hong Kong dollars exchange
rate movement.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed approximately
1,083 employees (31 March 2017: 113 employees). The Group
offers competitive remuneration packages to its staff, including
share option scheme, mandatory provident fund scheme and
discretionary bonus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

PROSPECTS

With China’s property management market continues to
consolidate, the Group sees both challenges and opportunities
in the coming year. To better prepare ourself towards these
opportunities and challenges, the Group aims to create brand
advantages in its property management services segment
through better service quality and enriching its service packages
with the vision to provide “beautiful living environment for
caring and comfortable life” to our customers. While the Group
is optimistic about the future development of our property
management services segment in the coming years, the Group
will balance its focus between its property management services
segment and its clubbing business segment. Looking forward,
the Group will continue to maintain its leading position in
the Hong Kong clubbing industry through regular review of
existing club’s life cycle and provide upbeat events to attract
its customers. When suitable opportunities arise, the Group will
not preclude the possibilities of pursuing suitable investment
opportunities in e-commerce, internet information technology
and other emerging industries in order to expand into different
income sources.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEZGHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Jiang (Z55I), aged 53, is the chairman and executive
Director of the Company and has joined the Group since May
2015. He is currently a director and deputy chairman of AUX
Holdings Co. Ltd. (B & & B BB A7) ("AUX Holdings”), a
China Top-500 enterprise with business operations in multiple
industries, primarily in air conditioner manufacturing, power
equipment, healthcare and finance. He had been a director and
the deputy chairman of Ningbo Sanxing Electric Co., Ltd. ()&
= 2B RRMAER AT, a Chinese electrical meter manufacturer
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601567)
("Ningbo Sanxing Electric”), since its listing on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange in June 2011 until March 2014 when he vacated
such offices by rotation. He has over 23 years of experience
in corporate management. He is a brother of Mr. Zheng Jian
Jiang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also
the sole legal and beneficial owner and sole director of Ze Hong
Limited, which legally and beneficially owns 10% of the issued
share capital of Huiri Limited, which in turn is interested in
219,950,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
58.66% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

Mr. Chan Hon Ki (FR#H), aged 40, is the executive Director,
finance director and a joint company secretary of the Company
and has joined the Group since May 2015. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in commerce from University of Canterbury, New
Zealand. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan
has over 13 years of experience in the field of auditing and
accounting.

Ms. Chen Huajuan (FRZE8), aged 41, is the executive
Director of the Company and has joined the Group since May
2015. She is currently the deputy superintendent of Zhejiang
University Mingzhou Hospital. She holds a bachelor's degree
in professional accountancy from Zhejiang College of Finance
and Economics (M BF &2 Ft) (currently known as Zhejiang
University of Finance and Economics (4 )L 8 48 K £)). She has
over 15 years of experience in finance management and human
resources management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEBCHE

Ms. Shen Guoying (JLBIZ), aged 47, is the executive Director
of the Company and has joined the Group since May 2015.
She is currently the chief financial officer of AUX Holdings Co.,
Ltd., and a director of Ningbo Sanxing Electric. She holds a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy awarded jointly by The Open
University of China (R EEE R KE) and Beijing Technology
and Business University (Jt X T K2). She is a senior
accountant (/= & & 5T Al) in the PRC. She has over 24 years of
experience in finance management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (BH[El), aged 56, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He is currently an executive director, vice
president and the company secretary of Huabao International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 336). Mr. Poon was awarded the
postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of London. He
holds a master’s degree in international accounting, bachelor’s
degree in laws and a bachelor’'s degree in business studies.
He is a fellow of CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, and a fellow of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a member of its Technical
Consultation Panel and Professional Development Committee.
Mr. Poon has years of experience in finance, compliance, and
listed companies management. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Sunac China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1918), Yuanda China Holdings Limited (stock code:
2789), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 1292), Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (stock code:
1249), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 631) Greentown Service Group Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 2869), TUS International Limited (stock code: 872),
Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Limited (stock
code: 2362), Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 196) and
Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (stock code: 1171). All
the above are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEBCHE

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (ff/N#), aged 51, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company and has joined the Group
since May 2015. Mr. Bau graduated from Idaho State University
with a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accountancy
and Finance. Mr. Bau has more than 17 years of experience in
accounting and auditing field. Mr. Bau is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Bau was
appointed on 22 June 2018 as an independent non-executive
director of FSM Holdings Limited (stock code: 1721), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lou Aidong (£E X), aged 52, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company and has joined the Group
since May 2015. She is currently a partner of Beijing Kangda Law
Firm (Jt R EREEAIETSFAT). She holds a bachelor’s degree in
law from the Peking University (It R K2%). Ms. Lou is a qualified
attorney in the PRC and has over 27 years of experience in
the legal profession. From May 2008 to April 2010, she was a
member of Public Offering Review Committee (21TEHZZ% 8
&) of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (F B & %
EEEIEEXE®) She serves as an independent director of
two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Guangdong Hongda Blasting Co., Ltd. (B & KEK AR 7D AR
‘AA]) (stock code: 002683) and Jiangsu Nata Opto-electronic
Material Co., Ltd. (L& FE AN EM BN AR A F]) (stock code:
300346).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Hei Yan (ZE&{Z) (with former name as Wong Lok
Kei (F%£3)), aged 53, is the chief executive officer of the
Company and has joined the Group since March 2009. He is
responsible for the overall operation of the Group. He has over
19 years of experience in the clubbing industry. Mr. Wong is the
spouse of Ms. Mok Kung Yee, the membership database and
IT manager and former executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Wong did not hold any directorship positions in any publicly
listed companies.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEXERHSE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed to
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate
image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied with
all the applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March
2018.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic
decisions to the Group's activities and oversees its financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to the
management for the Group's daily management and operations.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board comprised
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. At least one of the then independent non-executive
Directors possessed the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise, which
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, the number
of independent non-executive Directors represents more
than one-third of the Board. As such, there existed a strong
independent element in the Board, which effectively exercised
independent judgment.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Board comprised
the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Ms. Chen Huajuan

Ms. Shen Guoying

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

The brief biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 17 to 19.

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” to this annual report,
the Directors have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.
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TEERRE

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-
a written confirmation of his or her
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

executive Directors,

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has arranged
trainings for Directors in the form of seminars and provision
of training materials. All Directors have provided their training
records to the Company.

According to records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March
2018 is as follows:
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were held separately.
The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Zheng Jiang, and Chief
Executive Officer was held by Mr. Wong Hei Yan. The Chairman
is responsible for the leadership and governance for the Board
while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for day-to-day
management of the Group's business.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer is defined and established in writing.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the current executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years with effect from 15 May 2015, which shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated by him or her
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring
at the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring at the first
anniversary of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to him or her.

Each of the current independent non-executive Directors has
been appointed to the Board for an initial term of three years
commencing from 15 May 2015 which shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated either by him
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring
at the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring at the first
anniversary of the initial term of his appointment or any time
thereafter to him or her.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are governed by the Company’s Articles
of Association. The appointment of each of the Directors is
subject to his re-election at an annual general meeting upon
retirement. The Company’s Articles of Association provides that
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not 3 or a
multiple of 3, then the number nearest to, but not less than,
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Chan Hon Ki, Ms. Shen Guoying and Mr. Bau
Siu Fong shall retire by rotation at the annual general meeting.
All of the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the same meeting.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times
a year.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, and Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions and he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the
Board meeting discussing the matter concerned.
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Set out below are details of the attendance record of each of the
Directors at the Board and committee meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 March 2018:

Attendance to meetings

TXHISEETHRARABE_T—N\F=
A=t -BLFEMBTNESEREZES S
& HE RCER A IS

SR

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO OO O OO O OO OO O OO OO0

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE/ BTeBRY
Regular Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual Special
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EHEZE ENZRE REZEE FMZEEE KRREE KRREH
Exns Ef L L Ef - -
OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OB OO OO OO OO OO OO OO SO SOOOOOO OO OO OO OO
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zheng Jiang ¥ TEE 8/8 N/ATNEHR 1/1 212 i 1/1
Mr. Chan Hon Ki RERLE 88 NATER NATER NATER 171 171
Ms. Chen Huajuan BRERT T 8/8 N/ATER NATER 2/2 1/1 171
Ms. Shen Guoying MBI E 7+ 8/8 N/A TiE A 1711 N/ATER 1/1 171
Independent Non-executive BYFHTEES
Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERELAE 8/8 4/4 171 2/2 1n 171
Mr. Bau Siu Fung g ks 8/8 4/4 1/1 212 i 1/1
Ms. Lou Aidong BERRL 8/8 4/4 171 2/2 1/1 171

QOSOOOOBOOOOBOOOOODO QSOOI OO OB OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OB OO OO OO

GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2018 is scheduled to be held on 27 August 2018.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. All
the Board committees perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 January 2014 with
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. For the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee comprised three
members, namely Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok and Ms. Lou Aidong, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others,
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control,
compliance and risk management systems of the Group; (ii)
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board; (iii) developing and
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance

(i) providing an independent view of the

with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under
the Listing Rules; and (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to the employees and Directors.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out as follows:

J Reviewed with the senior management and finance-
in-charge and/or the external auditors the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
accuracy and fairness of the annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2017 and interim financial report
for the six-months ended 30 September 2017 respectively;

. Met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the year ended
31 March 2017 and the effectiveness of the audit process;

J Reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

J Conducted annual review of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2017;

o Approved the internal audit plan for the year ended
31 March 2018 and internal audit report for the year ended
31 March 2017;

o Reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved
the engagement of external auditors and recommended
to the Board on the re-appointment of external auditors;

o Reviewed the financial reporting and compliance

procedures and the report from the management on the

Company'’s internal control systems and processes; and
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° Noted the new requirements on the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under the Listing Rules
and highlighted the amendments under the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report of
the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Function

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to
perform the corporate governance function. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report and (ii) reviewed and monitored
the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 January 2014,
with specific written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination
Committee comprised a total of five members, being two
executive directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman) and Ms.
Shen Guoying, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Bau Siu Fung and Ms. Lou
Aidong. Accordingly, a majority of the members were and
continue to be independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include making recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 March 2018 is set
out as follows:

° Reviewed and discussed on the existing structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements for the business of the
Group and that it is in compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Remuneration Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang and Ms.
Chen Huajuan, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Lou Aidong (Chairwoman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and
Mr. Bau Siu Fung. Accordingly, a majority of the members were
and continue to be independent non-executive Directors.
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The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policies on such remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of executive Directors and members of senior management.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out as
follows:

° Assessed performance of executive Directors;

J Reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the

Company; and
J Reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages (including discretionary bonus) of
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:
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Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Diversity of Board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

As the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditor in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services provided to the Group were
approximately HK$2,746,000 and HK$184,000, respectively. The
amount for non-audit services comprised mainly the taxation
services and professional service in respect of acquisition of
Ningbo AUX.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN RESPECT OF

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2018. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The statement of the independent auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 83 to 92.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted an annual review of both design and implementation
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to
ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. In
this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material
issues to the Board.

During the Year, the Group appointed Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Risk Assurance Limited ("Baker Tilly"”) to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess

effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems.
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The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by Baker Tilly to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings
and recommendations of Baker Tilly as well as the comments of
the Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control
and risk management systems effective and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The internal control
mechanism includes information flow and reporting processes,
confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures, and staff
training arrangements, etc.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are
maintained, management is responsible for designing and
implementing an internal control system to manage all kinds of

risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments.
Our risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the
Board and management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports through the Audit
Committee that oversights risk management and internal audit
functions.
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OUR RISK CONTROL MECHANISM

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by Baker Tilly. The Group maintains a risk
register to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group.
The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee,
and management with a profile of its major risks and records
management’'s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The
risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all
risk owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they
can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk
management framework will be evaluated at least annually, and
periodic management meeting is held to update the progress
of risk monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensure
that risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate
goals in an effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet
its needs. Nevertheless, the directors will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit function.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The joint company secretaries of the Group are Ms. Tsang
Kwok Shan Sandy and Mr. Chan Hon Ki. Each of Ms. Tsang and
Mr. Chan Hon Ki has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company shall be
held in each year and at the place as may be determined by
the Board.

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting
("EGM")

Pursuant to the Article 64 of articles of association of the
Company ("Articles”), an EGM shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the company secretary at the
headquarters of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently
situated at Room 506B, 5th Floor, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition and signed by the
requisitionist(s). The request will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Board will convene
an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the request has been verified not in order, the
shareholders will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company
for the attention of the company secretary at the Company'’s
headquarter in Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders
at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow Article
64 of the Articles for including a resolution at an EGM.
The requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting”.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
DOCUMENTS

IN CONSTITUTIONAL

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rig - HERERHRE

INTRODUCTION

AUX International Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to as
"AUX") and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the "Group”) is devoted to providing high-quality services
and regards maintaining the pioneer position of its clubbing
and entertainment business in Hong Kong and its property
management business in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") as the vision and mission of the Group. The Group is
devoted to becoming a responsible business organisation. While
endeavouring to realise the corporate goal, the Group also
expects to seek benefits for the society and achieve sustainable
development in various aspects.

In view of this, this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report will focus on the balance of corporate needs,
social demands and environmental concerns. The Group
understands that injecting the sustainable development
element into business strategy has become a trend, so we will
communicate with different stakeholders positively to know
about their needs and carry out comprehensive management on
ESG issues. While implementing the sustainable development
plan, the Group will consider the short-term and long-term
factors concerned, including the challenges we are facing,
our responsibility for stakeholders, global trends, laws and
regulations, risk management, etc. In such a constantly changing
business environment, we believe that an enterprise can achieve
success only by making long-term commitments to the ESG
issues.

Through careful and profound understanding of different
risks and opportunities arising from ESG issues, the Group
will earnestly perform our corporate social responsibility,
abide by local laws, provide a suitable working environment
for employees, and meanwhile pay attention to social issues,
including responsible purchasing, prevention against drug
abuse, environmental conservation and volunteer activities, etc.
At the meantime, we'll make efforts to protect the environment
by reducing waste. As a part of the society, the Group will
certainly endeavour to make contributions to the society, and
collaboratively create a better community environment.

Finally, as to the policies and performance of the Group in
the four major categories, including environmental protection,
employment and labour practices, operation practices and
community participation from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018,
the Board is hereby pleased to present the 2017/2018 ESG
Report of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE - HERERRE

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

This Report introduces the Group's significant ESG performance
in the 2017/2018 fiscal year, and its long-term commitments
to ESG. This Report mainly focuses on the Group's clubbing
and entertainment business in Hong Kong and property
management business in the PRC, both of which are the main
business of the Group, and describes the progress of AUX
in creating sustainable values for its shareholders and other
stakeholders.

REPORTING RANGE AND BOUNDARY

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Guide"”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing
Rules issued by the Stock Exchange. This Report summarises
the ESG practices of the two operation units, namely AUX
International Holdings Limited ("AUX") and Ningbo AUX
Property Management Service Co., Ltd. (“"Ningbo AUX"). The
information contained herein is helpful to know about and
evaluate the Group's ESG performance in routine business in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

In addition to internal factors, such as the Group's corporate
value, strategy and core competence, the Group has also
communicated with the internal and external stakeholders on
a regular basis, and considered the ESG strategies of other
competitors in the industry, so as to achieve sustainable
development. The Group has also identified the following
categories that have or maybe have a significant impact on the
Group's ESG performance:

J Clubbing and entertainment industry in Hong Kong;

o Property service industry in the PRC;

J Property management market in the PRC;

. Present or future environment and society;

o Financial performance or operation of the Group; and

. Evaluation, decision and action of the Group’s

stakeholders
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEBRERERE

In preparing this Report, the Group has adopted some global
and local industry standards or best practices, including the
ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange and the applicable
accounting and financial reporting rules of Hong Kong.

The report has covered the critical issues concerned by different
stakeholder groups through continuous communication with the
stakeholders. We welcome opinions and suggestions for ESG
performance of the Group, which can be sent to the Group's
Email: info@auxint.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE - HERERRE

PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively seeks every opportunity to understand our
stakeholders, and guarantees the regular improvement of our
services. We firmly believe that our stakeholders play a vital role
in maintaining the success of our business.

FOENS AR
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Stakeholders Issues Concerned Communications & Feedbacks
B % GLET] 38 71 1
OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOO
HKEx Compliance with the listing rules, and timely & Meeting, training, website update and
accurate announcement announcement
BRBFT BTEMHRA - REREBROQE g EI PBUEFNRE
Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Government inspection, tax declaration and
prevention against tax evasion, and social other information
welfare
B EREEROEST DAL B BR®E  BHBRMEMES
Suppliers Payment schedule and demand stability Business communication, purchase agreement,
e-mail and telephone connection
HER REEER  FREE ¥BER KB BEFEAREERE
Investors Corporate governance system, business Organising and participating in seminars,
strategy and performance, and investment shareholders’ meeting, issuing financial
return reports and other announcement
REHE RAERRE XBKEBAUEN REOFK - HBWNZ2EMATE RRAE  BOUBEERSK
Hip» &
Media and Corporate governance, environmental Publishing newsletters on the corporate website
Public protection, and human rights
HEREAR RAER RERE AR ZaNTE Dl e S
Customers Service quality, reasonable price, service values, Field investigation and after-sales services
employee protection and working safety
BE REES  BREE REEE BEIRENT BEER EERK
EZ 2
Employees Interests and welfare, employee remuneration, Training, interview with employees, internal
training and development, working hours, memos, and employee’s suggestion box
and working environment
BT BEMBEMN - BIHM BlREER THER B BIERX ABETE BIZHM
8 TERIR
Community Community environment, employment and Community development activities, volunteering
community development, and social welfare activities of employees, community welfare
subsidy and donation
HE HERE BREMCEER 2875 fERERES - B % L&) ERE 4R A
BX
OO OOOOOOOOOOOO
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEBRERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL

For the Group, we understand that a healthy environment is
the basis for economic development and social well-being. As
a responsible organisation, the Group will pursue environmental
protection, comply with the existing laws and regulations,
handle and dispose of all materials to avoid adverse impact on
health or environment.

During the fiscal year of 2018, the Group did not find any illegal
behaviour relating to crucial environmental problems.

EMISSIONS

The Group is devoted to environmental conservation, and has
implemented eco-friendly measures in all of its operation units
so as to reduce carbon emissions generated during operations.

Air Pollution Emissions

In view of the Group's business focusing on entertainment
services and property management services, our business
activities do not involve any air pollution emission arising from
the use of fuel gas or automobile fuel.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions are a leading cause of global
warming, which leads to sharp climate changes and poses
a tremendous threat to the global ecosystem. The Group
understands although we have no direct greenhouse gas
emission, yet it is inevitable to generate indirect greenhouse
gas such as CO:2 during energy and water resources utilisation.
In view of this, the Group, as an organisation with corporate
social responsibility, considers the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions as the top issue we concern about.

The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group mainly come from
energy consumption for business activities in various cities,
including energy use, electricity consumed for treatment of
drinking water and sewage, as well as greenhouse gas emissions
indirectly generated from the employees taking planes for
business trips. In addition, we also plant trees of more than five
metres in height in the residential estates to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions generated from our business activities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE - HERERRE

The Group's two clubs in Hong Kong both hold the valid sewage
treatment licenses, and their sewage discharges have been
complying with the discharge limits specified in the licenses.
As for the residential estates under our management in the
PRC, the valid sewage discharge permits are all available, and
the sewage discharge mainly comes from the everyday life of
property owners, which will be discharged in a way stipulated
by the municipal government. The Group also maintains the
pipelines, valves and other equipments related for the sewage
discharge and exhaust systems on a regular basis to guarantee
their normal operation.

The total greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group
in the fiscal year of 2018 were approximately 12,295 tonnes,
of which 98% emissions were generated by Ningbo AUX. The
greenhouse gas emissions generated by Ningbo AUX were
approximately 64% higher than that of the previous fiscal
year. The increase in emissions was mainly attributable to the
business development of Ningbo AUX and the rising number
of residential estates under its management. As the data of
greenhouse gas emissions generated from the employees
taking planes for business trips in the previous fiscal year was
not stored, we'll start comparison of the data from the next
fiscal year. In view of the intensity of greenhouse gas emissions,
the Group will calculate the greenhouse gas emissions of each
residential estate, as shown in the table below. In this fiscal
year, the intensity of greenhouse gas emissions of Ningbo AUX
increased by approximately 42% as compared to last year. In
view of this, Ningbo AUX has implemented all kinds of solutions
in the energy efficiency program to reduce the generation of
greenhouse gases, including planting more trees of over five
metres in height and posting up labels to remind the employees
of saving electricity and water.

4 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 3% 87 EIBR 2 B A IR 2 3
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEBRERERE

Although the majority of energy consumed by Ningbo AUX EAZEFRZHHBHNERERE REHAE
is resulted from energy consumption by the property owners, = {# B BT - W JF 5 %% B 52 Hi Fr g 158 1 &9 46 &
which is beyond the controllable range of Ningbo AUX, yet A - ZERE G NERNETERELAMNBSEE
Ningbo AUX will still strengthen propaganda about electricity #AERAK: FE2FE ML EBK EFHEIRE
and water saving within the residential estates, and expect to HJF & -

reduce the impact of our business activities on the environment

as much as possible.

OO OO OO OO OO IO OO SOOI OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO
Total emissions (tonne)

Scope Source of greenhouse gas emissions (Ningbo AUX) MRk & ()
L = R B OROR (8 R % ) 2017 2018
—E—+tF —E-N\F

B O e S S S e e e e
Scope 1 Reduction of greenhouse gases by the newly-planted trees (7.82) (7.94)
g1 E1 MEES AR =ERERR
Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions' 7,223.44 11,889.97
EE2 BER AR = R BE
Scope 3  Electricity consumed for treatment of drinking water and sewage? 145.44 163.98
EE3 BR 32 R 7K F 75 7K B T OB FE Y & 2

Employees taking planes for business trips® — 21.91

18 B R 8 R I D

QOO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO QOO OO OGO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO0

Data of greenhouse gas emissions (Ningbo AUX) 2017 2018
BERBERBE (2 RERE=H) —E—+F —E-N\F
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0
Greenhouse gas emissions (tonne) 7,361.06 12,067.93
B =R (E)

Greenhouse gas emissions per residential estate under our management 320.05 455.39

(tonne/residential estate)*
BEEEFERAMNBEERESERME ETEE28)

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO O OO OOO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

! The power supply emission factor in the PRC is set at 0.71 kg/kWh. ! EREANEEHRESR AN TR,/ TRE -

2 The per unit electricity consumption for treatment of drinking water and 2 EFEMNEERKESKEEMNEEEND IR AE0.6
sewage in the PRC was set at 0.6 and 0.28328kWh respectively, while the 120.28328F LI - MR El &) g B E ) 78 & BE R &
preset emission factor for purchased electricity in the PRC is set at 0.8 B R08FR,/FTRE o
kg/kWh.

3 Due to the restrictions of data collection, this is the information about 2 AR EERBRS kAR _ZE—tFALAZTN
employees taking planes for business trips dated from 28 September 2017 HEZ_Z-N\F=A=+—HBHRBKE S FLREI
to 31 March 2018. HABER -

¢ The average number of residential estates under our management was  * T +UWBEETHEERAERABHEER23 =
23 in the fiscal year of 2017, while it was 26.5 in the fiscal year of 2018. Z-N\MHREETHERNBEE /K265 -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE HEBRERRE

AUX generated approximately 227 tonnes of greenhouse gases
in the fiscal year of 2018. As AUX has not collected relevant
environmental data before this fiscal year, AUX will start
carrying out comparative analysis of its emissions and resources
utilisation data from the next fiscal year, and will then take
further actions for the comparison results. AUX’s greenhouse
gas emission data in the fiscal year of 2018 are as follows:

1%

Considering that energy use is the major source of AUX's
greenhouse gas emissions, AUX will strengthen the
energy-saving monitoring measures, so as to ensure that all idle
electrical appliances are turned off appropriately, and that all
lamps and air conditioners are turned off after the office time
so as to avoid the unnecessary electricity consumption. AUX has
the confidence to show the effect of our energy-saving policies
in the ESG report for the next fiscal year.

Wastes Management
No major hazardous or non-hazardous waste was found in the
clubbing and entertainment business of AUX.

Ningbo AUX has entrusted the local qualified wastes
transportation agency to transport and dispose of the non-
hazardous wastes produced by the property owners, and
enabled the recycling of wastes. All wastes have been disposed
of in compliance with local laws and regulations. Recycled
materials concentration points have been set in the service areas
to carry out collection, classified management and declaration
of the statutory hazardous wastes and recyclable wastes.

4
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEBRERERE

As for the domestic garbage discarded every day by users in
the residential estates, the Group sets up waste recycling bins
to collect recyclable wastes, and arranges special staff to classify
and store the recycled wastes separately every day, and deliver
the recycled wastes regularly to the waste transfer station or
the solid waste recycling treatment plant.

HHEEEAARFEREENEALE A
SERETEMEUAE - BAKSEREREY -
WRZHBEABREDREDIMADBFR - E
HAHE 10 Ui ) B ) sk 1z 3 B 0 U o [ BE TR AR A
FA B 12 R -

However, as it is difficult to collect data about the intensity
and quantity of wastes, the Group failed to report the weight
of relevant wastes. Although relevant wastes of Ningbo AUX
are mainly generated by the property owners, which is beyond
the controllable range of Ningbo AUX, yet Ningbo AUX will
still strengthen the waste classification, recovery and disposal
process, and attempt to reduce the impact of our business
activities on the environment.

USE OF RESOURCES
The Group undertakes to become a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise and makes our contributions to
environmental protection. To reduce carbon emissions, we've
taken the initiatives to perform the energy-saving measures in
our business activities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE HEBRERRE

Electric Energy Consumption

The major carbon footprints of Ningbo AUX come from the
electric energy consumption. To coordinate the development of
the property management business and the residential estates
under our management, the electric energy consumption of
Ningbo AUX in the fiscal year of 2018 increased by 65% as
compared to last year, as shown in the figure below:

Use of Energy of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Year 2017)
B2 B v T BE R
(ZE2—LtHBFE)

Total electricity

ZREH FE

BRB R EEANRCEHRENELE B
ARAMEEBESEE NEENEEELD
PR EFBTINEEEEN_Z—/\BK
FEREFHS%RNEER - W TE AT :

Use of Energy of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Year 2018)

BN R M RERER
(ZE-N\HBREFE)

39 2% 2%

Total electricity

consumption 1% consumption
HHEE BREE
10,173,860 16,746,438
kWh kWh
TRE TRE
Tianjin Jijiang @ Nanchang Hangzhou Tianjin Jijiang @ Nanchang Hangzhou
RE p s 1= M Rz p s 1= M
® Ningbo @ Chengdu @ Jinhua @ Ningbo @ Chengdu Shanghai Qingdao @ Jinhua
BK % # v 2R R & L& - vE

In consideration of the energy use intensity, i.e., the energy
consumption per residential estates under our management,
the energy use intensity of Ningbo AUX in the fiscal year of
2018 was 631,941 kWh, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 43%. Although the energy used in the residential
estates are mainly consumed by property owners, yet Ningbo
AUX will still be devoted to propaganda of electricity saving
within the residential estates.

AUX's total electricity consumption in the fiscal year of 2018 was
285,649 kWh.

vz
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE - HERERRE

Water Resource Consumption

As drinking water is very precious resources on the earth,
saving water is one of the important goals of the Group. The
Group also makes efforts to reduce electricity consumption
generated from water supply, thereby reducing the Group's
carbon footprints.

Although the water resource consumption of Ningbo AUX
somewhat increased in the fiscal year of 2018 out of the need
of cooperating with business expansion, yet Ningbo AUX has
successfully controlled the growth rate at approximately 13%,
but the water resource consumption intensity reduced by
approximately 2%, as shown in the figure below:

Use of Energy of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Year 2017)

BRR R A AR E A
(=L HHFE)

1% 3% 1%

Total water
consumption
HBFEKE
205,829
m3

MK

KERHFE
HRRKEMIREFELENER  BHEAK
EAKEAET-—EEENER AERETFEN
R D HEKFTEERE NEFE - M FEIEARE
Mz B R El e

BERRRHNKERBERR - \MBEE
HAREAXEBERMAMER BRERKR
e B AR DDA b T A0 B8 R I 4913% - T B K
BRBREZTE R TEX2% » 1N R P

Use of Energy of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Year 2018)

B R 5 i RE IR 2 A
(=2 - \BHFE)

1%1%1%

Total water
consumption
BmIEKE
232,059
m3

MR
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QOBOOEOOOOOOOOOOOOOBO OO OGO OCOOSOOO OO OO OO OGO OO OB OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0
2017

Water resource consumption data (Ningbo AUX)

K& R OH A BB (TR R )

QOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO O OO QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

Water resource consumption (m?3)

IKETRH#E (3277 K)

Water resource consumption per residential estate under our management

(m3/residential estate)®
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2018
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205,828.69 232,058.62
8,949.07 8,756.93
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AUX's total water consumption in the fiscal year of 2018 was
2,454 m?.

The Group had encountered no issue in sourcing water that was
fit for purpose in the fiscal year of 2018.

Packaging Materials

In view of the Group's business focusing on entertainment
services and property management services, our business
activities do not involve any packaging materials used for
finished products.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

Currently, the Group mainly uses the energy of electric energy
and water resources. In the face of the increasingly severe
environmental pollution, the Group, as a part of the community,
is committed to implementing energy saving measures in
different levels of routine operations, including:

We encourage employees to turn off
the unnecessary power (e.g.: floor or
Saving electricity corridor lights)
LERE
BMsBEIETBENSR(N 2
JE 7 BR 8 ) B #=

We encourage employees to save
water consumption while using the
washrooms

Conserving water
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B The average number of residential estates under our management was

23 in the fiscal year of 2017, while it was 26.5 in the fiscal year of 2018.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Residential Estate Greening

Ningbo AUX of the Group delicately develops gardens and
greening space in the residential estates for each project
by virtue of professional greening management, such as
planting diverse flowers, grasses and trees, which improves the
microclimate in the residential estate, enriches the landscaping
there, and enables the property owners to experience the
biodiversity of the nature. One of the residential estates has
ever been honoured as the “most beautiful courtyard” by the
government.

Inside Long Xi Gu Residential Estate
ERXAEEERA

BERRRER

BRIELEEER
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EEENEEEECEMSCEREHBLEE -
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SOCIAL

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is aware of the fact that our business success
depends on the cooperation and cohesion of our teams. Our
teams are the most precious assets of the Group. Therefore,
based on the people-oriented core values, we are committed
to providing attractive remunerations, benefits and welfares for
employees, arrange reasonable working hours and holidays, and
ensure all employees have the equal opportunity. The Group
also holds internal activities on a regular basis and encourage
the employees’ participation to increase the Group's cohesion,
strengthen the employees’ recognition of the Group, and
reinforce their sense of belongings.

EMPLOYMENT

Our Employees

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has totally recruited 1,083
employees, including 994 ones for Ningbo AUX and 89 ones for
AUX.

Total Workforce Geographical Region
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Shanghai
L&

Ningbo
B

Tianjin

P

Hangzhou Nanchang Changsha
M Ma &Y

Jiujiang
b s

Jinhua

£
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Chengdu
2%

Nanjing
A=

Qingdao
BB

Huzhou Hong Kong
M b
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42 244 116 108 123

We deeply believe that a diversified, embraced and harmonious
group can help us have a better understanding about the
demands of different customers. Up to 14% employees of
Ningbo AUX have served the Group for more than four years,
which further proves that the Group's people-oriented concept
has been passed on to every employee via practical experience.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R 5% SiEIB ZRARAR
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Employee Benefits and Assessment

The Group deeply acknowledges that the Group’s development
and success indeed rely on the contributions and efforts of all
employees, so the Group provides competitive salaries to pay
back the employees’ efforts. In addition to providing attractive
remunerations and benefits to employees, the Group not only
offers performance bonuses according to the Group's business
results and the employees’ performance, but also distributes
holiday benefits on traditional festivals every year. The Group
also provides the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (MPF)
for employees in accordance with the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong, and pays endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund for employees
in accordance with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China.

In order to reward the hard-working employees more effectively,
the Group has established the well-organised performance
management system to efficiently motivate their sustainable
development, help employees make planning for their career,
realise talent inheritance, and enable the Group to develop
toward the sustainable operation goal. The Group implements
the monthly, quarterly and yearly performance assessment to
help employees establish the definite, measurable, achievable,
position-related and time-sensitive key performance indicators
of their own, supervise their progress on a regular basis, and
take appropriate improvement measures if applicable. The
Group will adjust the remuneration for employees regularly
by referring to their assessment results and comprehensive
evaluation and by combining the Group’s overall business
performance, so as to ensure the employees gain the best
remunerations in proportion to their efforts.

A Harmonious Working Environment

The Group is devoted to creating a harmonious and embraced
working environment for employees, and protect them from any
harassment or discrimination. The Group treats fairly and equally
the employees regardless of their gender, sex orientation,
disability, age, nationality or ethic origin, family status or other
personal characteristics that are protected by law. Even as
for our systems for recruitment, remunerations and benefits,
holidays, trainings, assessment, promotion, etc., we evaluate the
employees according to their abilities, skills, qualifications and
performances.

BIFEFARZE
AEBRMAEENEREXNERERAA
BETWMERASN BAKEREARFNN
HE EEIMNNLAME®R AKERTR
BETRHEEFMERN HeRAKEXE
RETRARHKENES  TeREBFERLH
ARETHRHARHN - AEETEEENS
TAEPIRETIMARVMERATES(GRES) #N
SR(PFEARKNMBELESHZ)SBETHMNEZ
Rz - BERR  KXERR ITBRR £5
KR REFAES -

REARMBRBEHINHNET  AEERE T
EMAMEREFE ARABDEIRERER -
HENETREBELE BEREATEE  EARX
SEPKELENBERER - AEERAE -
FERFEEREZ  BEHETI RECFLH
fE-AEeE mAEK BEBEHCABELAR
MHARERIER Y EMEREE - REF
HBEENNERRE AKEERETHEZNK
BREANE BAAREERBNEXE TN
RETHABHFH  UBRERETIESERAEMNHK
Lt REFOFE -

FIiE B T ER 5%
AEBYHIREITE-EMERETNITIER
BoOYHMEREIANZEAEREHER - AKE
BRARMER - IR BKR - Fik - Rk
BELS  REMRRLEMZ B ERFRENE
ANFBZETEARFY  RENTAEF &
RERPMOBE  HEMMEN  RH - F -
EREEAEHEL  RARETINED &
BEBEMMRAFBHEEL -

Annual Report 2 () /) & 8§

9




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE - HERERRE

Work and Life Balance

In order to ensure our employees achieve the balance between
work and life, and maintain a balanced and healthy lifestyle, our
actual working time is eight to ten hours a day and five to six
days a week, so that our employees can have sufficient time
to rest. Our employees can enjoy the annual leave for five to
fifteen days as well as other statutory labour holidays according
to their position level. In addition, the employees also enjoy the
funeral leave, marital leave, maternity leave, etc. As for Ningbo
AUX, an employee with a newborn baby under one year of age
can further enjoy the thirty-minute breastfeeding leave twice a
day.

Moreover, Ningbo AUX provides a series of facilities for
employees, including dining hall and dormitory, so as to improve
their sense of belongings to the Group, help those employees
who come to work far away from home achieve the balance
between work and life more easily, and alleviate their economic
burdens.

Communication Channels for Employees

The Group attaches importance to the opinions of employees,
so all employees and the managements are encouraged to
use our diversified communication channels, such as: e-mail,
forum or bulletin board,
communications. Generally when an employee has any appeal
against his/her work, we'll arrange the department supervisor
to have an interview with him/her, while the employee can
also complain against the person or department concerned.
If the person or department being complained against fails to
provide satisfactory solutions, the complaint will be submitted
to the superior department step by step, so as to ensure the
employees can receive a clear feedback.

to realise horizontal or vertical

The Company encourages employees to raise reasonable
suggestions about the Group. The HR Department is
responsible for collecting suggestions of employees and
guaranteeing their accurate delivery.
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Talent Retention
The Group cherishes talents, and the above-mentioned HR
management measures have successfully contributed to the

employee retention rate of about 97% for the Group.

120% —
98%
100% —
80% —
60% —
40% —
20% — 2% 4%
0%
AUX Ningbo AUX
R A BERRR
o Employee retention rate Employee turnover rate
ABBEX ABmEE
Health and Safety BEHZE
Health and safety of the employees are of vital importance to EBIWREHEZE2HAEEZWUEE  KEH
the Group. The Group is committed to providing a safe working EHABETRMHE—EZ 2 M TIERERE - WHER

environment for employees, and guarantees to fully comply with
all the occupational health and safety regulations. The Group
has increased the information and rules about occupational
health and workplace safety in the Employee Handbook, and
has formulated policies about the safe working environment,
such as Special Measures against Typhoon and Rainstorm,
defining working procedures and evacuation issues in severe
weather. Apart from this, the Group will invite the fire protection
equipment suppliers to give lectures about fire safety awareness
on a regular basis, to ensure all the employees are familiar with
procedures at time of fire alarming.

Any employee suffering from work-related injuries is entitled
corresponding compensation benefits in accordance with
relevant national regulations. In the special case of Hong
Kong employees, the Group will report the case to the Labour
Department in accordance with Article 15 of the Employees’
Compensation (Amendment) Ordinance, and contact the
insurance company for settlement of claims. At the meantime,
the Group will also provide sufficient work-related injury leave
to make the employee have a full rest.
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Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to participate in all kinds of
in-service trainings, and also provides employees with various
internal and external training and development opportunities to
help them maximise their business potentials.

The annual assessment results will be used to provide suitable
trainings for employees, in an effort to continuously improve
the Group's talent quality and working skills, motivate the
working enthusiasm of employees and stimulate them to face
challenges. Apart from considering the Group’s business vision
and target needs, the training and development program also
synchronously evaluates the employee performance and the
functional gap, coordinates with Company and the management
in establishing the education and training framework, and makes
plans for internal and external courses such as new employee
training, professional training, training of various management
levels, training relating to environmental protection, core values
of the Group, etc.. By physical or electronic learning methods,
it provides employees with all-round trainings, and enables the
Group's employees to continue improving their professional
and managerial competence, find out the platforms where they
can show their abilities, grow up together with the Group, and
establish a steady cooperative relationship.

The Group arranges new employees to receive the on boarding
training, aiming to make the employees know about the Group,
master the codes of practice, techniques and methods for
handling business, and adapt to the new environment and new
job quickly. In addition, the Group also provides trainings about
safety knowledge and environmental protection knowledge
for employees, and helps establish their awareness of safety
and environmental protection. Apart from the trainings about
technical procedures, employees can also participate on fire
trainings so as to enhance their awareness of fire prevention.

The percentage of employees trained in Ningbo AUX is 100%. In
the fiscal year of 2018, Ningbo AUX has provided approximately
8,429 hours of trainings for employees, with the average 8.5
training hours received by each employee.
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Labour Standards

The Group has established the employment and welfare policy
in compliance with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
and the labour laws of the PRC, and strictly prohibited the
recruitment of any candidate under the age of 18 to avoid
any child labour. The Group will never recruit any child labour
under the age restricted by local laws, and the Group’s HR
Department will require the job candidates provide valid
identification certificates to provide their actual age at time of
interview. Once any misuse of child labour is found, the Group
will immediately suspend his/her work, send the child labour
back to his/her original residence, and deliver to his/her parent
or legal guardian, for which the Group will bear the required
transportation and accommodation expenses, and pay the
salary due for his/her actual work.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to procurement
principles. In the procurement of materials and services, the
Group has established procurement policies and procedures to
promote fair and open competition. We ensure that we are able
to meet the best economic benefits in terms of price, quality,
delivery period and service when purchasing materials and
hiring services. As a responsible organisation, the Group abides
by the spirit of the contract and complies with the principles,
objectives and contents of the contract signed between us and
the suppliers.

The Group has the responsibility to ensure that procurement
of materials and services is conducted in a highly professional
manner and complies with the established code of ethics, so
that the resources are used properly, the suppliers have the
confidence in continuing doing business with the Group. We
must ensure that the suppliers understand and comply with the
Code of Conduct and the procurement policies formulated by
the Group. The Group has established a name list of selected
suppliers. Before any suppliers is approved enter this name
list, we'll review their company backgrounds (including the
recognitions, qualifications and licenses they've obtained),
product pricing and supply terms. In order to standardise
relevant systems and processes, the Group has formulated
relevant work guidelines and standardised contract texts, and
conduct comprehensive evaluation on the products and services
of suppliers on a regular basis to guarantee their compliance
with the Group's strict standards.
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The name list of selected suppliers will be reviewed at the end
of each year. Such review involves the evaluation on whether
a supplier's pricing, product and service quality, efficiency,
reliability, the ability to deliver goods on schedule, license
update and technical capability are still in compliance with the
Group's requirements and standards.

The Group selects reputable and reliable suppliers to provide
high-quality, affordable and sustainable products and services.
The Group has a transparent and independent procurement
process, with an aim to promoting competitiveness. This move
will also serve the benefits for our shareholders and other
stakeholders. The Group expects to establish a vertically
integrated supply chain management system by integrating the
procurement resources and developing the supplier selection
and management mechanism, thereby initiatively providing
comprehensive solutions and satisfying customer needs.

Meanwhile, the Group encourages the suppliers to promote
the corporate social responsibility activities and abide by the
corporate social responsibility rules. All business transactions
shall maintain high-standard ethics; bribery or other illegitimate
benefits must not be provided or accepted; information relating
to business activities, structure, financial status and performance
shall be disclosed on a regular basis in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Product Liability

Customers are the cornerstone for the Company to achieve
sustainable development and a source of power to promote
product innovation. The Group strictly requires that our
products and services must conform to the public interests, and
handle inquires and opinions of customers in a timely manner.
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Ningbo AUX 2R B A

Ningbo AUX adopts the whole process customer service ZEREGBIHANFENYEEEEFETHIER
concept in project positioning, planning and management of its  JEfZ - & EEMNZBEFTLPRBES - I
property management business in the PRC, covers the customer HFiEHEEBELEENNERP HEEIERT
satisfaction indicator of related operation units in all regions A¥ZEEBEMHMENESZEE R
into the scope of performance evaluation on these operation % » # & Tk R -

units, and constantly improves our services from the interest of

customers.

Management The Group conducts lawful management and operation in accordance with the requirements
according to law in government laws, regulations and policies, so as to ensure our property safety and value
increase. By virtue of normative approaches and with the goal of pursuing satisfaction of
property owners, the Group provides efficient and superior services for the property owners,

and satisfies their requirements honestly without fraud.
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Superior services The Group develops business earnestly, makes unremitting pursuits and improves the
details to strive for perfection. The Group also makes full use of the internal and external
information about quality environment, occupational health and safety, and customer
feedback, constantly improves the quality, environmental and occupational health and safety
management system, keeps such systems always in effect, and pursues endlessly a higher
level of management and performance.
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Infinite innovation The Group will focus on infinite innovation, and uphold the spirit of infinite innovation from
business levels to management approaches. Employees of the Group shall have the spirit
of loving and respecting their jobs and being ready for innovation, and attempt to achieve
the synchronous development of both individual and corporate values.

12 R R8I F AEBEBHZENERMEH KEXBEBLZERFR HLAGERAIFNER XEEE
TEREMME ZRAFNEs BERAABERECENRLSER -
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Sustainable Standardised management is crucial to the Group's development. To achieve development,
development the Group must attach importance to standardised management, establish and improve
its quality, environmental and occupational health and safety systems, establish effective
inspection and implementation mechanism, and guarantee the Group’s steady and

sustainable development.
FERE REETEEERERNER SEZERVAIEEENAEBERE BEYUMTESEENE
B RENBEEELEHE BUYUARNREMEERS BROERBENHELR -
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The Customer Service Department of Ningbo AUX is ZEFERHMNEFPRBIEEIHEEER -
responsible for caring about customers initiatively, handling BEREEXFKRFREEIIE  HEHXFPHEEREET
and managing customer complaints, systematising and refining {ER Gt BB - WRBIRFEIETIE - B
customer relationship management, standardise the complaint R P& fE& Fae L - 5B ME B EEL -
handling work, and enabling all the complaints made by

property owners to be solved timely and reasonably.
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In order to standardise and regulate the customer services of
operation units in various regions, the Group has formulated
the normative documents such as Property Owner’'s Complaints
Handling Flow Sheet, Standard Operating Procedures for

Property Owner’s Complaints Handling, etc. to constantly

improve its customer relationship management level.

Complaint reception

RFER

Receiving a complaint
BERHF
-

Keeping records of the complaint
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Minor complaint
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Making a commitment
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Reporting to Director

EREE
v

Director of the Customer Service
Department orgnises for resolution
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Keeping archives and paying return visits
BEYETERH
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Making commitment

i R
v

Reporting to Manager
LREE

v

The Manager organises
for resolution
REBABBR
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-
Major complaint
BEARH
-

Reporting to General Manager
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Holding an office meeting
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v

The General Manager organises
for resolution
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Keeping archives and paying return visits
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Upon receipt of the complaint from a property owner, the property butler will firstly show
sympathy for what the property owner is suffering from on behalf of the department being
complained, and keep detailed records in the Logs of Customer Service Department
immediately. In case of a minor complaint, it may be submitted to the department being
complained in the form of Work Contact Sheet.

EERIEFRFR  DEEREARRERFABFARNEFNEERTRIE - L7 BAESE
PRSP M08k - 5B SR F AT ACTERE 8 8) 69 7 308X B IR R

Complaint ABFT ©
channels
Complaint channels for property owners include:
XPRFARBERE:
e Reception desk switchboard e QQ group of property owners
o FBfASHEK e XFQQH
e Customer service receptionist e  Official micro-blog and WeChat account
o ERATE o BB RMER
Ningbo AUX employs students from high schools as the temporary staff to conduct
sampling survey on satisfaction of the property owners about our products and services,
and collect customer opinions and suggestions about the daily services of Ningbo AUX,
in an attempt to constantly improve the Group's customer service level and property
management quality. Moreover, Ningbo AUX listens to the voices of customers, actively
Satisfaction collects customer opinions, rapidly responds to customer needs, and devotes itself to
T continuously improving the customer service quality via such channels as hotline, written
suggestion, property owners’' forum, social media, etc.
WEEAE ggestion, property

ERRRHNRTEREFEE RN T HEPETERMRENEENHMERAE
VHERRRZHOAERBETEPEREZZNKE  UTHRAXEENEP IR
KFRWEEERE - I BRRRHERBEARER ZSHEH XPHE #X
BRERE ERFEPLE BRBREREEFER AROEREFFE  BONFEIE
EERBEE -
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AUX L

AUX is committed to providing the best customer service RAEHBMIABRREESZETEPREER K
experience, safeguarding relevant intellectual property rights FEJ/ERFE BEHFAEBE A FHERE - (REBEIL
of the software used in clubs, protecting customer privacy, B  BREMANELZERHIEESE RBof2
guaranteeing the security in clubs, and preventing drug abuse. A HEEGH EREBE THBREDT

AUX has formulated relevant systems to regulate relevant

operations of employees as follows:

AUX is committed to providing customers with an efficient complaint handling mechanism
and taking the following approaches to achieve this goal:

BRI N AETRE - EAARENRFEERS AR TINTEANERILBER:

o All employees deal with customer complaints in an objective and positive manner

e MAEEBINRENERNEEREBERTFNKRF

o Actively contact customers to follow up or resolve complaints in a real-time manner
Complaint . F E)EE R P IR 15 O ok BD B AR R 3% B
handling J Investigate the cause of the complaint in a real-time manner and provide remedial
RiFEE measures

o HIRFALTRFRE - W3R H AR KIS

o Record the details of all complaints and record the contact information of the

complainant in daily log for investigation and follow-up
s RAHE2HRFAH  UHRFANBEENLEASHASPAHBIEMRE
o Periodically review the progress of unresolved case

s TEHRBAARABREREE

AUX has formulated intellectual property policies and procedures to manage, protect and

monitor the copyright usage:

RrREANBEERRIIEFAEE  REREERENER:

o Prohibit the use of unauthorised software or the reproduction of any object of
intellectual property rights

e HIIERAKERENRHRERERMABEENDH

Safequardin o Before using a third party material, ensure that a license has been granted
ATEQUArEINg - . AEME=HMRN RREETHAE
intellectual . . . . .
. o Educate and remind all employees to comply with copyright laws via email or
property rights .
4 3 5 B AR Intranet L ¥ \ .
’ . ABEFHMIABERKBENREMEE TEFREE
J Retain lawyers to verify copyright owners, buy the public performance licenses and

deal with other copyright problems

e BEEMZEREA- BEQRERERNEIE A MRk E RS

o Establish the List of Licensed Songs according to the public performance licenses
already bought

e REEBEZAMBMMEBRI(EFHFAZKRE)

AUX has established a membership system to provide more convenience and benefits
for membership customers. All the membership data are kept and encrypted by the
Protecting membership database manager to avoid the unauthorised access to the sensitive data of
customer privacy the members.
REBEFTLE RrlfiREEEHE AMATEENEERHELNENEEE - MEEASNHEER
BB EERBERELVETNE  BERLAAEAKHFAINBAT2HEENHRE
£ o
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Safety in the club
BREMZ2

Prevention
against drug
abuse

Bh ik B 2

AUX is committed to providing customers with a safe and orderly environment within the
club, to ensure that customers have a wonderful time there:

RufiZNREEREMARK -—BAZ2ERFNERE  BREATNREMAABRER !

Professional security personnel are hired to maintain the order within the club
SN EERREFG AN T

Ensure all the hired security personnel hold valid security certificates and pass the
drug test

BRMAXBENRZEOFBEARNRELEE BB E RS

Closed-circuit television operates in the form of 24/7 (24 hours a day, 7 days a week),
and in the event of an accident, we will view relevant records for follow-up

B BR BAR bA24/7 (— R24/NBy - —IA7TR) P EME - 3 4 BN 7] #1F A8 B °C 8% A
TEIR

Strictly control the flow of club patrons

BRARES g MEE AR

Check the identification certificate of any customer suspicious of being under 18
MEBEAMTARALTHSHERM

If we find any customer under 18 or uncooperative, the employees shall ask that
customer to leave the club. If necessary, we will inform the police for assistance.
EERERB T \REEXEHEBEETSENBAT BREREXEHUETRFAS
Pr-tNERE HEBAEHTHE -

AUX has established rules to prevent drug abuse:
CRR IR VAN 3: bR U

All the new employees must pass the drug test before recruited

FTB T AR < B T 78 i iR %5 OBl By o B2

The Group carries out conventional drug test every month in the clubs, and choose
randomly the employees to receive sample test
AEEGARSMETEREYAS  UBEHKETEASETERAIR

Any employee who is suspected of taking any prohibited drugs can be directly
reported to his/her department supervisor

MERERMETIRAENEY ATHEERMAERHIETERS

AUX has hired drug detection dogs from Hong Kong K-9 Academy Ltd. to detect
prohibited drugs on a monthly basis, and search thoroughly the whole clubs,
including rest rooms and bars, and issue the certificate after the search
RrfiEBFEBKINRBEENEREBEER HEBALETENEDER  HEE
Ef RRAETFEMNMBEETHRERER  TERSRELIHAE

Our security personnel will request any person suspicious of dealing or taking any
prohibited drugs to leave the club.

MBREMARSKBRABEIEY  REABSAERZASRKRA

If any specific evidence is found to prove any person dealing or taking any prohibited
drugs, the club manager will call the police immediately
MERAEBEFRZATMALIRIKRAEMNEY  sRLEEgTRELRE
AUX will arrange Caritas Lok Heep Club to provide lectures with respect to drugs,
mental health and other healthy lifestyle to employees

R fiEfZ AT LEGERHUENER VERENEMREAENBETET
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Anti-Corruption

The Group prohibits any act of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The good moral integrity and anti-
corruption mechanism ensures the Group's acts in all work be
professional, honest and fair.

The Group strictly abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, and requires all employees sign the Employee Anti-
Corruption Commitment Letter, making the commitments as
follows: While engaged in business practices, an employee must
not directly or indirectly provide, undertake, require or accept
any illegitimate benefits, or carry out other dishonest acts in
breach of good faith, law or national regulations, including
criminal offences including corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering, and other acts such as providing
improper charitable donations or sponsorships, providing
or accepting unreasonable gifts, entertainments or other
illegitimate benefits, infringing business secrets, trademark
rights, patent rights, copyrights and other intellectual property
rights, engaged in unfair competition, etc. The Group requires
the employees must report any benefits received, for which the
Group will make the final decision on disposal.

During the fiscal year of 2018, neither the Group nor its
employees were prosecuted for corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering.

Anti-Corruption Course

In order to create an incorrupt and honest working environment,
the Group invites the Independent Commission against
Corruption (ICAC) irregularly to organise lectures and distribute
handouts for employees throughout the Group, so that the
employees can understand the Group's code of conduct for
employees and anti-corruption regulations and elevate their
sense of anticorruption and self-discipline during work.

Whistle-Blowing Channel and Policy

The complaint whistleblower shall truthfully report the situation
to the Administration Center. Upon receipt of the whistle-
blowing matter, the Administration Center will investigate
the complaint. The Administration Center will keep the
whistleblower’s personal information confidential, and will
submit the case to the competent external agency for
disposal when necessary. The whistleblower will undertake
corresponding legal liability for fabricating facts, falsifying
evidence, or conducting false charge or frame-up by whistle-
blowing.

( AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 3% 87 EIBR 2 B A IR 2 3
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group insists on the philosophy of giving back to the
society. Apart from the continual and robust operation of
business development, the Group will make active efforts to
show the service spirit of our core corporate values, integrate
the ideas of community concern and participation, and continue
devoting to all kinds of education, cultural and social welfare
activities.

Volunteer Services

The Group is committed to performing its corporate civic
responsibility, of which volunteer service is an important part. In
view of this, the Group has particularly set up a volunteer team,
to cooperate with the Agency for Volunteer Service in charity
work and return to the society.

In the coming year, the Group will input more resources in
various education, cultural and social welfare activities, actively
participate in community activities, and express the Group's
concern of and return to local society.

Regulatory Compliance

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to emissions, employment, health and safety, labour standards,
product responsibility and anti-corruption during the fiscal year
of 2018.

HERE
AEERFEELENER  RIEERREL

EERERI BRRACEZOLEENRBER
HBAMBEHEBEARMESENBSE 58

EARBEBEBE X REERREY -

ETRH

REBRORBEOTRARER  MEIRBITZ
EPEZEN—HD BRERYE SEEEKL
ETEK SAEBIEERBAELHEEST
B OfEHE -

AEBERR-FRREREAE R E
RBEEHERNEZER BR2EHETS
REASEHEMHENBOEDE -

EESH

RZZFB-N\MRFE AEELTHEAEMNEA
RETEBERY  BR @FELE $%T
FHCERBEERRERERE LRI A
SEHEEARFENEBR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE B - He2kEsfEikEmiNsE

REPORTING GUIDE AND REFERENCE

A. Environmental
A. RE
A1. Emissions

Al. BEBY

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and nonhazardous
waste.

BHBERLRERBHEN  MAKR NS AERETEEVNEESTHOREK
REBTHETABEAZENHBERZMROIINER -

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

KPI A1 R f8 R A HE & i -

KPlI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
KPIAI2REREAHNECEABE)REBEE(WER)(MNESEREN - BHEKRIE
HE)

KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

KPI AMISFIEARERRMAEUEABE)RERE(WER)(MNEEEEN - 817
BB HE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

KPI AAFTEEBRERRMAE LEAB)REBEE(WER)(MNEEEEN - 817
BB HE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.

KPI A1SH Al R IE E M E B R AT ERE -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved.

KPILATOH R IEEEREZTEREYN T L HEELEENEEMASKR -

.
6‘5 AUX International Holdings Limited / B3¢ HiEI R 2 IR R A =)

Reference in the Report

rHESE

Pagef#
HE#

39-43

N/A
i A

39-42

42-43

42-43

39-42

42-43



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEBRERERE

A2. Use of Resources

A2. EREH

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BERERER(BIERIR KR EAMRME) B E -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

KPI A2 RSB R Bl DM EE R/ SEEER(ME - K30 LFEE AT ETERT
BhkEBEWMASEEEMN  BERBHE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
KPI A28 R KEREE (NS EEEN - B8

ot o

%IH

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

KPI A2 3% 5t 5 JR £ F3 Ak s 5 &I R PR S BCR ©

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

KPI A2 4% 50 SR EBGE /KR LRI BEMBE - A RBEARKREAERAERR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

KPI A258 K mFTABEMMEE (UNEAE) R(NER) BEEEMEE -

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

A3. RERRRER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

BMEZETAHRERRRERENEAZENERK -

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

KPI ABMEL R RS HIRBENRAERNEATERERNEEFRAZENTH -
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B. Social

B. &

B1. Employment
B1. &%

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BRAHM N EE HBERES TESS8 - R FERS Zalk REEUR
HihFBRBHNOBRERETHETAGEAZENEBEELRAINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.
KPIBIUZ MR - EEEE  FHRAMN MR ONES LR -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
KPI B1.2#Z Rl ~ FERARI KR E DM EEREKLE -

B2. Health and Safety
B2. @EHZ®

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
FARHRLZEIERREAMREREEH R ENCENRRLETHETARERX
TENBEBERRAONER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
KPI B2 1A TERBERM L T A A B R EL & -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
KPI B2 2 TIB B A TER B -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they
are implemented and monitored.

KPIB23fH M AR MM B R B E L 216k - ARBEBATRERTX -
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B3. Development and Training

B3. #E K

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.

ERRABEBRIT TIFREMNANB R IREENBR - WA EFIES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle management).

KPI B3N MRI REEER (e REREE  PREEES)ESNZIEEETS L °

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.
KPI B3.2i M AHI MR EEAIE D BREBTHKIINFHRE -

B4. Labour Standards
B4. % T %4

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
AN EETRRFETHOBREBTHETABEATENHEBEZELRAINE
¥ o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

KPI B4 1#H i i sf FREE BRI M E AR 2 ET Kok k& T -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

KPI B2 AR E R BRAR BB BB RAMREN T RE

B5. Supply Chain Management
BS. L EEE =

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

EEHEENRREREERRBEEK -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
KPI BS. i i & &1 75 M R A B E -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers

where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and

monitored.

KPI B5.24# it /5 B8 BS
il

AEEENES MERTEREMNNHERZEE  UREE
B TT R ERITE

o
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B6. Product Responsibility
B6. EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
ERAMRHERNRBOREELE ES RERMBEEARBRIENK
RRETHETABEAZENHBERZERIINEH -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

KPIBOLIEER D BRAEMBHFTRLZ2HEREAMALKMBE D

KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how they
are dealt with.

KPI B6.2#% B N B i M AR5 O LR BUE A R R 5 0% ©

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
KPI B6.3% it B2 4 & M AR[E AN B EE B RN B -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
KPI Be At E Ef T BIE R EmBIRIEFR -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

KPI B6.5H L HEEE R RERLBEHE  UWRBEBERATRERSE -

B7. Anti-corruption
B7. RES

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRAMLEHE R HFEMAIBRENERRLETHETABERZENERER
NI EHL o

KPI' B7Z.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes
of the cases.

KPI BZIRERHMAUHTAXEBEREICEANE SFLRRENEHE LKL
BR -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B7.2ftlfr B e R R BB - U RMEARTRERTE -
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B8. Community Investment

BS. HE&RE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BN R2ERTREEMEHEFTFENBREEBIDEEELEN ZHEK
% °

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e. g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport).

KPIBBIB T ERIEIE (KA REFHE BITHKR @F Xt 8B5)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

KPI BS2EZE X8 EFMB AL R(IN& E /) -
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with EZREZUREHEZE-_Z—N\F=-A=+—H1
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March FE 2 FHLLEHFZMBERE o
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEXK

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The ARGz EEEBAREZER - XAa X ZEMH
activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in  BARR Z EFH NI B REAM 5E15 °

note 15 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW ¥ KD E

A review of the Group's business during the Year, which includes ZAEBRFANEKEESIERNEBEMEEHN
a fair review of the Group's business, a discussion of the principal ZAEBEBHNAFERN T ZRBETHEAR
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, an analysis of the Z=WiMH  AEEEXZHHERBEIN - FAF
Group's financial key performance, particulars of important events ZAREBEMEAEHNEEBEMUREASEE
affecting the Group during the Year, and an indication of likely B RKKRAEERHEE - HEBLEBEZIIRN
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in  ARFHRHWEIZ16ENEEE N REDTE D -
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 9 MIR%E « L EREARSE T HIRIFEEK IR
to 16 and the Environmental Policies can be found in the ESG $¢¥&E’]%35:67E s ﬁﬁzm S E
report on pages 35 to 67 of this annual report. The contents of EHREMEAEFOEN -5

the abovementioned sections form parts of the business review

as contained in this report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations BIEERER

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the BESFSREEEMA REBEEZE_ZT—N\F=
management, the Group complied with the relevant laws and AZ+—HUIFE AEEESHEEZH E D
regulations which constitutes material impact on the business ETH ARG REWBRAREBSLEEMEE
and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in all material X E XK ZMABEEERER -

respects during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers HRET FEFREEFNEEZHZ

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant AEBHRETI AAEENEZEEY— I
assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing WHEZEZVHEAENRKEAEEZ EHREITHNE
a caring environment to employees and emphasis the personal AR

development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with our customers AEBBETFRMHEFNRIFIRTER WEE
and suppliers. The Group aims to continually provide quality WHEZEFREEE RS K IEE L A K EtfE
services and consumption experiences to our customers and FEEIVAEREAEEIZ -

establish cooperation strategy with our suppliers.

Environmental Policies RIBEEHE

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly AEEHDEIERROEEIRE  BEEBXAE
corporate environment that pays close attention to conserving & @ BB E E J1HE ﬁ&%ﬁb@uﬁl%ﬁl an
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact on &ﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁﬂiﬂiﬁhﬁm%% — 5
the environment by reducing its electricity consumption and 1§ - Qfﬁ$¢#&%35ﬁ %675%%@2%% .
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. For & & E=R e

further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report set out on pages 35 to 67 of this annual

report.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 93 to 175.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Losses attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$25,517,000 (2017: HK$28,803,000) have been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$140,305,000 (2017:
HK$96,383,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
176 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 24(b)
to the financial statements.

Shares were issued during the year by placing of new shares.
Details about the issue of shares during the year are also set
out in note 24(b) to the financial statements the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Capital Structure”
in this annual report. The contents of the abovementioned
sections form parts of this report of the Directors.

B # R
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There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
represent less than 30% of the Group's total revenue.

The information in respect of the Group's purchases from the
major suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2018 is as
follows:

BE-T-\EZA=+—AILEE AAF
EAANBARMEBRE LEBOALR
EHES

BLrEER
AAREBERMNSHERE R HEEH
BB 25X BE AR AR B
ERFR2BEFRD -

B IEH R &=
EEYTAEREESEAAT DL MESE
fa] B TR %% -

FTEEERHER
BE-T\EZA=+-AILEE A£EE
KRR 2 48 26 (i 7 6 1 4B K 25 ) 7A30% ©

TEHEBRRBE_T-/\F=ZA=1T—HL
FREAGBAEERBZEMDT:

QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOO GO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

Percentage of
the Group's
total purchases

EAEE
KBREERSL

OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO
The largest supplier A ER 81%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate R ER S 97%

QOGO OO OO OO O OO OO O OOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

During the year, other than Ningbo AUX Real Estate Group
respectively (approximately 9.7% of the total sales) in which
Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang and Mr. Zheng Jiang indirectly holds
85.0% interests and 10.0% interests and Ningbo Mingzhou
Hospital which is an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of
a 30%-controlled company held by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang
(approximately 3.6% of the total sales), none of the Directors,
their associates or Shareholders who to the best knowledge
of the Directors own 5% interest above of the issued shares of
the Company has any beneficial interest in any of the Group's
5 largest suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang

Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Ms. Chen Huajuan
Ms. Shen Guoying

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation.

By virtue of Article 108 of the Articles, Ms. Shen Guoying,
Chan Hon Ki and Mr. Bau Siu Fung will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM").
All Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS'’
BIOGRAPHIES

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 19
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
then Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO"), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief
executive were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be recorded in the register therein, or were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules were
as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of associated
corporation of the Company

EERRESTRAERRKRG - HERD
REREETFZEBERAR

REZZE-NF=ZA=1T—H ARAEREFK
RRITHRABRARE R AT ABEBEE(EE
REZLEERN(TFEHRBEER ) EXVE)
B HERDEREEETEREREESFNR
HEGRPIEXVEBE7R85 B A ME ANAA) N
Rz SRR (BRRIEEZ R BEGRDIZ
FHRXERIEFRAEERZESTRABREA
ZiEm MR R)  HRIBEFE P EGRPIF352
A AZGM 2 &Mz EsE LRR - X
RiEEMRRAEZRETANES AR MK
Rz EELORBIT

R F] G H% B2 R 17 RIGEIR 10.2 4 B

QOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO GO O OO OGO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

Approximately
Percentage of

Name of Name of Capacity/ Number and the issued
associated Corporation Directors Nature of interest class of shares share capital
ERTREAZ
MBEEER EEnf 50/ REtE R4 8B &R BHEI T
QOO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0
Huiri Limited (Note 1) Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 0.1 10%
corporation ordinary shares
BERERERRR(MZ1) T REEEER RN
China Prosper Enterprise Holding  Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 1,000 10%
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) corporation ordinary shares
China Prosper Enterprise Holding 5T XEEEER LAk

Co., Ltd. (A1 #£1)

QOGO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

Note:

1. Ze Hong Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Jiang, was
interested in (i) 10% of the issued share capital of Huiri Limited, being the
holding company of the Company; and (i) 10% of the issued share capital
of China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd., being a fellow subsidiary of
Huiri Limited. Mr. Zheng Jiang was deemed to be interested in the shares
of Huiri Limited and China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd. as held
by Ze Hong Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short positions

required to be recorded in the register kept under section 352
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERFERBRORHEHBEROZERE R X
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND &
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of RZE—\F=ZA=1+—H  BARABREE
persons other than the chief executive of the Company who had R EIE K HIFE3361&FE 2 E L MR8 - T3
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of AL (AQE &Z&ITEH A B IN RAQE K5
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company kiR GF - HHEEAREBEEFESRBEKFIE
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and XV*E%Z&?)’\* BXRARRBRBZFHE
3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to @ KA BT :

be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

B S R e e e

Percentage
of the issued
Long position in share capital
Capacity/ ordinary shares (approximately)
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest held (Note 1)
BEITRA
BEEBER Bo (L)
REZA BB EmtE 2R (K1zE1)
BOGOOOOOOOOOOOOIOCOOOOOODDIOOIOIOOOOOOOOIIIOIIOOOOPIPOOOOIOOOIOIOOOOOOODIIIG OO OO OTOODOOOOOOODOOOOOODOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOIOD
Zheng Jian Jiang (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 219,950,000 58.66%
corporation
BRER T (A7 772) REEEER
Ze Hui Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 219,950,000 58.66%
corporation
EEERQR (72 REEE R
Huiri Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 219,950,000 58.66%
fERZERERAT (M Z2) EnEaA
He Yi Ju (Note 3) Interest of spouse 219,950,000 58.66%
R B8 (M7 7#3) Fic 48 2 &5
Xu Xingen Beneficial owner 32,400,000 8.64%
RER EnlEaA
Chen Yongan Beneficial owner 21,600,000 5.76%
PR ok &2 Em#AA
BOOOOOOOOOOBOIIHIIIIOIIIIIHHMMIOIOIIIHHHHIHIIIIIIIHHHIOIIMHIHHHHOIIIIHIIIHSOOOHHOIIIOOHHIOIIIOORHIOI ORI OO
Notes: b it -
1. On the basis of 374,984,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 1. ERARRARZZE-—NF=ZA=+—HBBE %
2018. 374,984,000% B 17 ©
2. Huiri Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with 2. EHERARAF A —HNREBRE LBESIMA L
limited liability which is owned as to 90% by Ze Hui Limited (which is in WERLA BEEERAFR(ABRIAXELTEER
turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang) and 10% by Ze HHEAEIREBRAERAT (HERRPTEERESE
Hong Limited (which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zheng TRETIEEZEERER) D BIHEH0% R10%#
Jiang, a current executive Director and the chairman of the Board). Each o RIBBHRBEKN - ME /I%E&E%ﬁﬁﬁ
of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang and Ze Hui Limited is deemed to be interested RAIZERBEANERERERRAESERNM
in all the Shares in which Huiri Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO. BERDFEE R °
3. Ms. He Yi Ju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang. Under the SFO, Ms. 3. MERHZTRBRIEENRS REZFHFRPE
He Yi Ju was taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which &l @%‘\%ﬁ;?ﬁ RANRBE TR EREERN
Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang was interested. 1A R B B B A R B o

c )
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Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in the paragraph
"Continuing Connected Transactions”, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with
a Director or a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 March 2018 or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Other than the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
disclosed below, at no time during the year, the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements which would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or its subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this
report, none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 was granted any right to subscribe for the
shares or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries or had
exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS'
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board is not aware of any
business or interests of the then Directors and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests which
any such person had or might have with the Group.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
having regard to the Group’s operating results and individual
performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors, employees and other eligible persons.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 2(p) to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

IPO OF THE

The net proceeds from the IPO amounted to approximately
HK$105.6 million, among which approximately HK$97.4 million
had been utilised as at 31 March 2018. As mentioned in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 June 2017, as at
31 March 2017, the Group had used approximately HK$19.5
million and approximately HK$10.4 million respectively for
the decoration and other opening costs for Zentral and
for additional working capital and other general corporate
purposes, which were designated uses as disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 13 January 2014. During the
year ended 31 March 2018, parts of the remaining net proceeds
from the IPO had been utilised as follows in accordance with the
revised allocation plan as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 June 2017, and the unutilised portion has
been deposited in licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong.

RRARERLRBRERDAERERER

al

REBEAXLAFREENMEREFELNA105.68
BHrT R-E-/\E=ZA=+—80 CHRL
FRA7AE BB - AR HEB AT —+
FRAZFT-_BNQAEHM R —tF=
B=+—R AEBEHHFERNI9SEE ST
N #1048 BB TiEZentral O & « %
MAREINEEESUREM—RAT AL
ZERBRAARRBHA-TE—NF—A+=
AR EREEMNETCRARZ - B2\
FZA=F+—HLFE BREARRBEHAE=Z
—tFERNAZT BN AEMEZ KBTI E
B BRTHEAAHBENSREFELY
BT BABAFSEFTREERESH
A -

LSOO OOOBOOOBOBO OO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OB OB OO OO OO OO OO

Utilised Unutilised
Proceeds Proceeds
as at as at
Revised 31 March 31 March
allocation 2018 2018
R-ZZE-NF RIZE-N\F
=A=t+-8 =A=+-8
ZEEBH ZEKRBA
Use of proceeds FERERE RIEFT 2B 8 XIE 8 XIE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BERER BERER BERER
OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO
(i)  settlement of consideration i FAEKBE=ERER
payable for acquisition of Rz BRE
Ningbo AUX 57 57 —
(i) research of business (i) EBHEEMWRE-
expansion including but not BREETRRE
limited to clubbing business FrEBEMESE
and property management BE
business 10.7 2.5 8.2
(iiiy capital expenditure, working (i) EARZ - &E&E
capital, other capital B HiER
requirements and other BREEM—R
general corporate purposes RAIAE 8 8 —
75.7 67.5 8.2

QOO OOOOOOBOOOOBOBO OO OO OGOBODOOOO OO OO O OO OO OB OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO
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The net proceeds from the Placing of new shares of the
Company were approximately HK$54.1 million, which had
been used in the way as disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 10 July 2017. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had utilised approximately HK$5.1 million of such net
proceeds for working capital. It is expected that the unutilised
proceeds will be applied for the intended uses as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 July 2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 3 January 2014 which shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date, subject to early
termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Eligible Participants (as defined below) and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the
Eligible Participants have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to the following persons (“Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives, or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including any non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or

any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv)  such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group, the

assessment criteria of which are:

(1) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(2)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(3) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(4)  length of service or contribution to the Group.
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MR EMEEEE MR -
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BEFEHEERNAER2EE(ERA TR
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EEHRAIBEEHZER - EZ SR IREBR
BEFFRANATAL(AERZ2BE)REBR
1

(i) AR E)SE AR B R B A 2 BB s AR
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The Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
Shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue immediately following completion of the IPO
(but taking no account of any Shares which may be allotted or
issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as
defined in the Prospectus)), being 30,000,000 Shares. The total
number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme to an Eligible Participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date
of grant unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant on or before
the relevant acceptance date. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from
that date. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall expire on 2 January 2024.

Up to the year ended 31 March 2018, 2,745,000 options had
been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018, there was no option
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.
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As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
27,316,000 Shares representing 7.28% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of the Company, the Company had a
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 and as at the date of
approval of this report of the Directors, pursuant to which the
Company shall indemnify the Directors against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which any of them may
incur by reason of any act done in execution of their duty in
their respective offices, except such as they shall incur through
their own fraud or dishonesty. The Company has maintained
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions between certain connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and the Group
were entered into and during the year ongoing for which
relevant announcements had been made by the Company in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

(@) On 7 November 2016, Ningbo AUX and Ningbo AUX Real
Estate Co., Ltd, an entity controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian
Jiang, a controlling shareholder of the Company, entered
into the Property Services Framework Agreement for a
period of three years commencing from 1 January 2017
and ending on 31 December 2019. The entering into
the Property Service Framework Agreement constitutes
a continuing connected transaction subject to the
reporting , announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the Property Service
Framework Agreement are disclosed below. Mr. Zheng
Jiang, who is the brother of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, Ms.
Shen Guoying, who has been serving as the chief financial
officer of AUX Group Co., Ltd., and Mr. Chan Hon Ki, who
was the chief financial officer of Ningbo AUX Real Estate
Co., Ltd,, are deemed to be interested in the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the Property

RAFERAR - RIFEBREF S AIHETZR
19 #8 B /327,316,000% - 16 AR E B2 #EITRA
7.28%
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MR THETR/EERL - ARFAEHRER
AEBMSIBMNH B ESNEARTHRBES
EEefBBEERR -

FEBEXS

ATRETARBDEEAL(EER LA
EAREEMILRNFEFAFEZARFERE
EHRAREFELEEAEZRS -

(@ RZZE—R"F+—AtH ERRTHEK
EFRZHEXARAR(—HALRRQF
TR REER T EITESINERE) 5]
MERBERGZ B -_T—tF—H—
HEZ-ZT-NAF+-A=+—HL &
H=F  -RELTHRAUFUVATNHR -
NE - FERISRBIRREMEZRE
RIVHERBERGEBAFEAER
5 ZMERBERBE 2 FBREN
T ENTHRAE(BEETRENTE) Ik
Bl % 224+ (A Aux Group Co., LtdMEf %542
) BREEEAE (RERREZHEXEAR
NAIM I EHEE)  WRR/NYERBAE

Annual Report 2 () /) & 8§

9




Report of the Directors
EEEWE

d

Services Framework Agreement and had abstained from
voting on the relevant resolutions of the board of the
Company approving such transactions.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Pre-sale management service

Pursuant to the terms of the Property Services
Framework Agreement, Ningbo AUX should provide
management and maintenance of residential
properties and facilities of completed development
projects of Ningbo AUX Real Estates Group before
delivery.

Sales Offices Management Services

Pursuant to the terms of the Property Services
Framework Agreement, Ningbo AUX should provide
cleaning, security and customer services at the sales
offices and showrooms in the development projects.

Unsold Residential Units Property Management
Services

Pursuant to the terms of the Property Services
Framework Agreement, Ningbo AUX should provide
maintenance and cleaning services for the unsold
residential units.

Determined with reference to, among others, the
historical transaction, estimated demand of Ningbo
AUX Real Estate Group and business plans of Ningbo
AUX, the annual cap of the fees under the Property
Services Framework Agreement for the year ending
31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 shall not exceed
RMB34.0 million, RMB20.1 million and RMB17.4
million respectively.

The details of the transactions were set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 28 February 2017.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R 5% SiEIB ZRARAR
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

(b)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Disclosed by the
Company’s announcement dated 7 July 2017 and 29
December 2017)

On 7 July 2017, Ningbo AUX as supplier and Ningbo
Mingzhou Hospital, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Mr. Zheng
Jian Jiang, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
as customer entered into the Service Agreement in
relation to the provision of property housekeeping
and transportation services by Ningbo AUX to Ningbo
Mingzhou Hospital for a term commencing on 8 July 2017
and ending on 31 December 2017. On 29 December 2017,
Ningbo AUX entered into the Supplemental Agreement
with Ningbo Mingzhou Hospital to extend the term of the
Service Agreement to 31 March 2018. It was expected that
the aggregate amount of fees which may be charged by
Ningbo AUX for the aforementioned period pursuant to
the Service Agreement as amended by the Supplemental
Agreement shall not exceed RMB8.2 million. Mr. Zheng
Jiang, who is the brother of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, Ms.
Chen Huajuan, who is the deputy superintendent of
Ningbo Mingzhou Hospital, and Ms. Shen Guoying, who is
a director of an intermediate holding company of Ningbo
Mingzhou Hospital, are deemed to be interested in the
continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the Service Agreement as amended by the Supplemental
Agreement and had abstained from voting on the relevant
resolutions of the board of the Company approving such
transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the

above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were:

(a)

entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group;

conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favorable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

(b)
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter to the board of directors of the
Company containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
and confirming the matters set out in Main Board Listing Rule
14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company has
complied with all applicable requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
which are set out in the section headed “"Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 80 to 81. As disclosed in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, certain of
the other related party transactions set out therein constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company which are
exempt from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the board

Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018

(! AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 3% 87 EIBR 2 B A IR 2 3
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
AUX International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AUX
International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 93 to 175, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code") together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment

FEWE - BERREZRE

HREITSEEHA

Refer to accounting policy (j) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

FRMETBE(G)RAAEHBFEHENE12

The key audit matter

BRETEE

The Group operates two clubs in Hong Kong.
BEEERNBREEMB G -

At 31 March 2018, the Group's property, plant and
equipment amounted to HK$14.4 million, among which
HK$10.5 million relating to the clubbing business.
RZZE-N\FE=ZA=+—H - E5ENYE BERERXR
RI4ABERBTT ERI0SEEBTHEMEBAR -

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded a
segment loss of HK$7.8 million in respect of the operation of
the clubbing business in Hong Kong. The current economic
environment in Hong Kong and the weak consumer
sentiment have created uncertainty in relation to the Group’s
clubbing business. Consequently, management considered
that potential impairment of property, plant and equipment
existed as at 31 March 2018.
BHE_T-N\FZA=T—HLFE  EEBERFTELE
EMEBBFIHIHBEIBASET  c BAENNKERER
HBEEORSS - A EXSENSMEBERTEEL -
- BEEERR WE BEERBER-_FT-NF=ZA=1
—HAlREEARE -

(S)g AUX International Holdings Limited / B 3% £f B2 BB R AR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETONNERZER

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
property, plant and equipment included the
following:

BPFEDE BMEARBZBRENETRETE
By E:

e evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the allocation of property, plant
and equipment and other assets to each
CGU;

s WHEEHEENEREZELBEUNBERALD
X BEARBLREAMEEINIREZEREE
EEMER:

e assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which
included evaluating the impairment
indicators identified by management and
assessing the impairment assessment
methodology adopted with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o HYHREEEMMENGER B8F2
RIBITE T ERIMESR - &I EH B8R
BEFRMRBOBRERN G EETHE:

e obtaining and inspecting the value in use
calculations prepared by management
and on which the directors’ impairment
assessments of the property, plant and
equipment were based;

s ERUREEEEMRUAEFTAEHYE -
BB K iR TR E R A R AL SR E A
BEAEXR:
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BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment

FEWE - BERRBEZRE

HREITSEEHA

Refer to accounting policy (j) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

BFRMETBE ()R FEHENT12

The key audit matter

BRETEE

Management performed impairment assessments of
property, plant and equipment for each separately
identifiable cash-generating unit ("CGU") with indication of
impairment using the value in use model and compared the
aggregate carrying values of the respective CGU to which
the property, plant and equipment had been allocated with
the net present values of the cash flow forecasts for each
CGU being assessed. Based on the impairment assessments,
impairment losses of HK$6.4 million were recognised for the
year.
ERECRAEAEBEREYBRETRNEAHEANRE
EABU(REELEBEMDNOYE  BMERRBETRER
i URYWE BMELAREESENHERSELSMNE
FHESRFHENSReELASURREFRANNFREELET
B - RIBRERN G AFEERBEBRABSET °

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
the exercise of significant management judgement, in
particular in estimating future revenue, future operating
costs, the growth rate and the discount rate applied.
FRASRERINRRINERENERALE - LEAER
EEARRMA - RIRGERA ERERFAERAOFTRAEX -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNNERZER

challenging the key assumptions and
estimates adopted by management in the
discounted cash flow forecasts by comparing
the significant inputs, which included future
revenue, future operating costs and the
growth rate with historical performance,
the financial budgets of the Group, which
had been approved by the directors, and
externally derived data, which included
projected growth rates, projected inflation
rates and industry analyses published by
external research institutes;

FERLERERBABE  BEFERKKA K
REGERAR BREKERFNERE . &
SEEFEHAENMBRERINBER &
BB ERE  AABRERINBAREE
BHOTEIN  HEREBERAFRERE S
MERMRKANBERRREMGIRHERE:

assessing the discount rate applied in
the discounted cashflow forecasts by
benchmarking against those of other similar
companies in the same industry;
2REATEAMBEUACE  FEERAFTR
RenERMRANTEER:

153
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BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BERESNSEHA)
Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment
FEME BERRBEZEE

Refer to accounting policy (j) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

BFRMETBE ()R FEHENT12

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HRESASE BEMNETNAMEEZER

We identified assessing impairment of property, plant and e evaluating the historical accuracy of
equipment as a key audit matter because of the significant management’s value in use calculations
management judgement required in making assumptions by comparing the forecasts at the end of
and estimations, which can be inherently uncertain and the previous financial year for revenue,
subject to management bias. operating costs and the growth rate with
BPRKAEDE BELRREBEZRERESBREFEE the actual outcomes in the current year
THEREFEHBRERGASSIREBRENE XFIE - HEH and investigating reasons for any significant
MrERRTHELERARXERBZIRIEMTE - differences between the forecasts and actual

results; and

e FBRKEEBEXLENHREFERTKA K
ERAREEENEAREFERLCELER
ETHE THEEERAMAENGERE
EREEE THSBARERER2HED
RAMEREENRRA: &

e performing sensitivity analyses of both
the discount rates and future revenue and
considering the resulting impact on the
impairment assessments and whether there
were any indicators of management bias in
the selection of assumptions.

o HUWMBHRRARBAETHRESINF  LE
BEHREFHEENTE  UERRBER
REELRAEMNEEBRIAOTR -

N
(5)6 AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R



Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

HREITSEEHA

Accounting for the acquisition of Ningbo AUX Property Management Services Co., Ltd.

BEEERHNEREERARACETER

Refer to accounting policies (d), (e) and (h) and note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

BFRH LI E(C) ()R (WU R & & B 7% # & I 7225

The key audit matter

BREEE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group acquired
Ningbo AUX Property Management Services Co., Ltd.
("Ningbo AUX") and paid consideration of RMB153 million
(equivalent to HK$179.7 million).

BE_Z-N\FZA=1T—RHLFE  EEBURBEIR
RHMERBAR AR ([EKRREDIA MK EARKSS
BETEEMO7AEET)

Goodwill arising from this acquisition amounted to HK$57.2
million, which represented the excess of the consideration
paid over the Group's share of the fair value of the
identifiable net assets, including the intangible asset of
property management contracts and related customer
relationships.
ZWBEREEAMES/2ESE L ULBERENREBL
BEEERETENFEECBRYEEECRLERERPH
BEHNEFVEE)INRFEZERE -

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired in this transaction were assessed by the directors
based on an independent valuation prepared by an external
valuation expert which required the exercise of significant
judgement and estimation, particularly in relation to
determining the fair value of the intangible asset.
ARZZGWHBNRAI BRI EER BN R FEAESTREINEG
EEERFBROBLEEETHE  ZFAGFRELREKRH
B fhst  LESEBERTLEENRFER BN E LG
it

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWEFONERZSE

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting
for the acquisition of Ningbo AUX included the
following:
BAFEREERR RN RENENER
BRETIIFE:

e reading the sale and purchase agreement
and evaluating management’s accounting
treatment for the acquisition with reference
to the terms set out in the sale and purchase
agreement and the prevailing accounting
standards;

s HEEEWRZNZ2RESHAMIBGRNER
TeFERFHEEEHEBEENS R
b

e obtaining and inspecting the valuation
report prepared by the external valuer
engaged by the Group and on which the
directors’ assessment of the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired was based,;

o ERYiEh BEEZBHBITIGER
HNAERS(EEULHEERERER
HEWRBRAIENFEENRFE)

e assessing the experience, competence and
objectivity of the external valuation expert
engaged by the Group;

o i EXEZEBMAIBEEERNLR -
BEAMEBIL:
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

HREITSEEHA

Accounting for the acquisition of Ningbo AUX Property Management Services Co., Ltd

BRERRRHNERBERIAAZEFER

Refer to accounting policies (d), (e) and (h) and note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

BFRH LI E(C) ()R (WU R & & B 7% # & I 7225

The key audit matter

BREtEE

We identified the accounting for the acquisition of Ningbo
AUX as a key audit matter because the acquisition has
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
and the valuation of intangible asset of Ningbo AUX requires
the exercise of significant management judgement.
BHERUBERR2ANEHREES —HBARENFE
THRZWBERUGEMBRRELIEATERERR
RHENEENHEREEEBHFEHERNHAL -

(S)d AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWEFONEERZSE

involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing the valuation model
and significant estimates and assumptions
applied in the valuation of acquired
intangible asset on the date of acquisition,
including discount rate and attrition
rate, with reference to available market
information; and
ZREMOABEEEIBHERMESLEM
EBMMmEESR  FHEBACDKEBER
EEBERRBNGBERREREXNGFT IR
wOBERABAERRBRER R

evaluating the assumptions adopted in the
preparation of cash flow forecasts for the
purpose of the intangible asset valuation,
including future growth rates for income
and expenses, with reference to our
understanding of the business and historical
trends.
SERMUXBRELBENTE FER
BEERERNMRERE S RERAMEK
AHRR  BRARKRABT HIERE -
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BIUREMBE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

REMBBERRREZHMBEUIME
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Ka Nang.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z-\F=ZA=+—-—HBLEFEWUBTERT)

QOO OO O OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO O OO0 OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOO
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Note $'000 $'000
i FHE T FET
QOO OO O OO OO O OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOO
Revenue &= 4 268,237 102,802
Other revenue H h Uh 2= 5 4,050 156
Other net loss Hh g8 %58 6 (6,370) (90)
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA (22,068) (23,749)
Property cleaning expenses MEB R X (33,232) —
Staff costs BT A 7(b) (107,278) (25,106)
Depreciation and amortisation Hr & K # 7(c) (17,536) (10,335)
Property rentals and related expenses WMERS RBEBERX (33,651) (36,652)
Impairment losses on property, plant and % - B E & &2 & B E
equipment &5 18 7(c) (6,427) (5,130)
Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHEAX (13,781) (10,106)
Other operating expenses E (51,021) (18,906)
Loss from operations KREELERE (19,077) (27,116)
Finance costs B & A A 7(a) (1,484) —
Loss before taxation BB ATE 1B 7 (20,561) (27,116)
Income tax P15 8(a) (4,956) (1,687)
Loss for the year FRER (25,517) (28,803)
QOO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO0 OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 OO O O OO OO0
Loss per share SREE 11
Basic and diluted HEAK#E (7.2) centsfl (9.1) centsll

QOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO QOO O OO OO OO OO OO O OO0 O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

The notes on pages 100 to 175 form part of these financial F1002175BE M B ZF W B MK — &6
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEmREMEZEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z-\F=ZA=+—-—HBLEFEWUBTERT)

DOOOOOCOOOOOOOOOIOOOOOIDH OO OO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO OO
2018 2017
—E-NF ZE—+F
$'000 $'000
TER FHET
DOOOOOCOOOOOOOOOIOOOOOIDH OO OO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO OO
Loss for the year FRER (25,517) (28,803)
Other comprehensive income for the year HREME2MEKE
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ HR{EAJEER D 2187 2
profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences on translation of the BREWBRARIMBEHRE ZER
financial statements of subsidiaries ER(ENBEE)
(nil tax effect) 10,537 —
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEZEWNEHAEE (14,980) (28,803)

OOOOGOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO O OOO O OO0 GO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO0

The notes on pages 100 to 175 form part of these financial ZF1002175BE M EIEK ZF P B HwEH —

statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SEMBERAR

At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZB-NF=ZA=+—BUAEBTERT)

OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO QOO O OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

2018 2017
—E-NEFE —E—+F
Note $'000 $'000
B TE T FET
OO OBOOOOOOOOSOOOOOOOOSOOOOOOC OO OO OO OO OO OO SO OO OSSO
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKIZB 12 14,395 26,303
Intangible assets BEEE 13 73,120 —
Goodwill EES 14 60,321 —
Deferred tax assets RERTEE E 23(b) 1,498 706
149,334 27,009
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16(a) 2,990 4,348
Trade and other receivables B 5N EMmEWFKIE 17 68,272 17,123
Amount due from a related party J& W — % B Bk 75 30R 18 540 2,160
Restricted bank deposits SR HIER1TIE R 19 2,726 —
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 19 1,000 1,000
Cash at bank and in hand BOEZRAFERS 19 206,788 93,589
282,316 118,220
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables B 5k H M EMNRIE 20 133,457 32,497
Obligations under finance lease EhE A e RIE 21 161 —
Current taxation BN HR %% 18 23(a) 3,479 —
137,097 32,497
Net current assets RBEEZFE 145,219 85,723
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERABERS 294,553 112,732
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Loan from controlling shareholder REZERKRRER 22 123,845 —
Obligations under finance lease mEHERE 21 618 —
Deferred tax liabilities EER B EE 23(b) 18,280 —
142,743 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 151,810 112,732

QOOOODOOOOOOOOODOOOOOOSOOOOCOOOOSOOOOSOOOOCOOO OO OO OGO OO OO SO SOOOOCOOOOODOOEOOOOSOOOOBOOSOOOOBE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BETBMRRE

At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZB-NFZA=Z+—BUAETET)

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO

2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—tF
Note $'000 $'000
Iz TET FAT
OOBOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOBOCOOOOOOSOOOOOOOOCOCOOOOOOOO OO OISO OO
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRF#E
Share capital fi% A< 24(b) 3,750 3,150
Reserves ke 148,060 109,582
TOTAL EQUITY ExeE 151,810 112,732
QOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZZE—N\FXAZTNHKESSH ERE

29 June 2018. BT -
Zheng Jiang Shen Guoying
BT =S
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 100 to 175 form part of these financial Z5100E175B MM sE Az S B 75 K M — 2B

statements. 5 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAEREEX

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z-\F=ZA=+—-—HBLEFEWUBTERT)

SOOOOOBOBOOO OB O OO OO OO O OO SOOOOBODOOBOBODOOOD OO SO OO OO OO OO OO OO

Retained
profits/
Share Share Capital Exchange (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses) equity
REBEF
R& R % E EXfA EXGEE (REER) BRAHE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TET TRT TET TRT FTER FERT

OOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 GO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO0

Balance at 1 April 2016 RoB-REFNA—AZEH 3,150 123,542 2,500 — 12,343 141,535

Change in equity for the year BE-Z-tf¥=A=t-H
ended 31 March 2017: LEECREE2E:

Loss and total comprehensive income FREE L 2 E M= L5
for the year — — — — (28,803) (28,803)

Balance at 31 March 2017 and R-ZE—-tF=ZA=+-BK
1 April 2017 —E-—tEMB-AZEH 3,150 123,542 2,500 — (16,460) 112,732

Changes in equity for the year HEZ-Z2-N\f=A=t—-8H

ended 31 March 2018: LEEZEZEE:
Loss for the year FREE — — — — (25,517) (25,517)
Other comprehensive income for the R H 2 &K &=

year — — — 10,537 — 10,537
Total comprehensive income FREENAEE

for the year — — — 10,537 (25,517) (14,980)
Placing of new shares it & ¥ R 17 600 53,458 — — — 54,058
Balance at 31 March 2018 R-Z-N\E=A=1+-HZ

-3 3,750 177,000 2,500 10,537 (41,977) 151,810

SOOOOOBOBOOO OB O OO OO OO O OO SOOOOBODOOBOBODOOOD OO SO OO OO OO OO OO OO

The notes on pages 100 to 175 form part of these financial ZF1002175BE WM EIEK ZF U B HwEH —
statements. e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEBRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z-)\F=ZA=+t-BLFEUUBTRT)

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO QOO O OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

2018 2017
—E-NE Z—E—+F
Note $'000 $'000
B & FExT FHET
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOHOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOIOOOI IO SOOI OO OO OO OO OO SOOI OO
Operating activities REZH
Loss before taxation B B Al BT 18 (20,561) (27,116)
Adjustments for: BT FIEELFHE:
Bank interest income BT B A 5 (944) (14)
Income from available-for-sale financial A ESMmEEZ
assets WA 5 (768) —
Finance costs Bl & K AR 7(a) 1,484 —
Depreciation meE 7(c) 10,477 10,335
Amortisation 5 7(c) 7,059 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and EEWE  BWERRK
equipment &8 6 4 90
Impairment losses on trade receivables B 5 rERFIARERIE 7(c) 1,488 —
Impairment losses on property, plant and W% - BE KR ERE
equipment & 8 7(c) 6,427 5,130
Foreign exchange loss BN & A 7,289 —
Changes in working capital: EEESHEH:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL/ (M) 1,412 (1,008)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 N E e W 508 (18
receivables m) /A (12,126) 10,144
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 & HAth FE S 3B 18 hn 14,131 8,059
Decrease in amount due from a related FEU — 2 BB 5 SRR R
party 1,620 —
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR IR 77 17 0 hn (852) —
Cash generated from operations KEELRSE 16,140 5,620
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EIRERBEEMEGN — 1,867
The People’s Republic of China (“the PRC") BEffHZEA R HEFME
income tax paid ([FRBD)FTIS L (6,856) —
Net cash generated from operating RETHELERESFH
activities 9,284 7,487

94
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SEBHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z-)\F=ZA=+t-BLFEUUBTRT)

OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO QOO O OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

Investing activities

REREY

Note

P &

2018

—B-N\F

$'000
THET

2017

—E—+tF

$'000

TR

QOGO OOOODOOOOOOSOOOOSOOOOCOOOOSOOOOSOOO OO OO OGO OO OO SO SOBDOEOOOOOD OO OGO SOOOOBE

Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2R 1777 BOR o 3,547
Payment for the purchase of property, plant BE#W ¥ - BRE&

and equipment BEERE (3,004) (7,071)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE¥Z « K&

and equipment K &8 P15 I8 276 8
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WHERB AR 2

subsidiary Wem b FE 25 (177,139) —
Proceeds from redemption of available-for- & [B] A] 4 5 & & @t

sale financial assets BEFSHIE 105,700 —
Interest received =R SRS 944 14
Income received from available-for-sale EHﬁZ—W—‘UﬂE i

financial assets BEZBA 768 —
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFFARESES (72,455) (3,502)
Financing activities mEEE
Net proceeds from placing of new shares B2 & ¥ % {72

FIT 15 30 IRF 8 24(b) 54,058 —

Proceeds from loan from controlling ERBREERZERIE

shareholder 19(b) 117,481 —
Interest on loan from controlling ERNERBRRER ZFE

shareholder paid 19(b) (1,468) —
Capital element of finance lease rentals ENMEMEHRSH

paid e & D 19(b) (56) —
Interest element of finance lease rentals EMNmERERSN

paid MEE 5 19(b) (16) —
Net cash generated from financing METHELENRSFE

activities 169,999 —
Net increase in cash and cash RERREEEY

equivalents B nFE 106,828 3,985
Cash at bank and in hand at the FHORTHERRFARE

beginning of the year 93,589 89,604
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEEZ® & & 6,371 —
Cash at bank and in hand at the end of FRBITERRFHEES

the year 206,788 93,589

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO QOO O OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

The notes on pages 100 to 175 form part of these financial

statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

AUX International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 14 January 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2013 Revision) (as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Companies
Law”). The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) is principally
engaged in operation of clubbing business and provision
of property management services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

/(/ ) AUX International Holdings Limited / B 3% £f B2 BB R AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that available-for-sale financial assets which
are stated at their fair value (note 2(f)).

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

2

EXETHERGE)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

702

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
impact on the accounting policies of the Group.
However, additional disclosure has been included in
note 19(b) to satisfy the new disclosure requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7,
Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which
require entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see note 2(j)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

707

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit (“CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(j)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Investment in available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in available-for-sale financial assets are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value
at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows:

At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Income from available-for-sale financial
assets is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out in note 2(s)(vii).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 2(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2())).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Over the unexpired
term of lease or
2 years

— Leasehold improvements

— Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

2 to 10 years

— Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

@i

700’

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(j)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimate useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Customer relationships 4 years
(clubbing business)
— Property management 10 years

contracts and related
customer relationships

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(g). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(j).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale financial assets and trade and other
receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost and investments
in available-for-sale financial assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

—  a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

—  a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale financial assets and trade and other
receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

—  For trade and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()]

770

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale financial assets and trade and other
receivables (Continued)

—  For available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
financial assets are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets;
—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a CGU).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()]

/772

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

— Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).

— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

M

(m)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2())),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

777

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(ii) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the
Group under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme as defined contribution retirement
plan in respect of the operations in Hong
Kong. The employer’s monthly contributions to
the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of each
employee’s monthly salary, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000.

Contribution relating to the staff in the PRC
are made to the PRC local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC.

The cost of all these schemes is charged
to profit or loss of the Group for the years
concerned and the assets of all these schemes
are held separately from those of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

770’

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

778

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of beverages and tobacco products
Revenue from sale of beverages and tobacco
products is recognised at the point of sale to
customers.

Prepayments from customers in respect of
the membership schemes operated by the
Group which are considered to be unearned
at the reporting date are shown as receipts
in advance in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

Revenue from club operations
Revenue from club operations (including
entrance fees, cloakroom fees and event rental
income) is recognised when the services have
been provided to the customers.

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised when:

—  the promotion events have been held; or

—  the services have been rendered, and
it is probable that sponsorship income
will be granted and the amount can be
measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Property management services income
Revenue from the provision of property
management services is recognised when the
services have been provided to the property
occupants/owners.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered.

Income from available-for-sale financial
assets

Income from available-for-sale financial assets
is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

720

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi)j The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=)
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FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Segment reporting
Operating segments are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's different lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of non-current assets
If circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of a non-current asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered impaired, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in profit or
loss. The carrying amounts of non-current assets
are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable, except for
goodwill which is tested on an annual basis. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of non-current assets (Continued)
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. It
is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less
costs of disposal because quoted market prices
for the Group's assets are not readily available.
In determining value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of
sales volume and amount of operating costs.

Impairment of bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of
the counterparty to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing of
the trade and other receivables balance, credit-
worthiness and historical write-off experience. If
the financial conditions of counterparty were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.

Income tax

Determining income tax provision involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provision is
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reassessed periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for temporary deductible
differences and unused tax losses. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary deductible
differences and the unused tax losses can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management reassess these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Additional deferred tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation/amortisation charges for
the property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets of similar
nature and functions, taking into account anticipated
technological and other changes. It could change
as a result of change in market demand for the
service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected wear and tear and the care and
maintenance of the asset. Management will increase
the depreciation/amortisation charge where useful
lives are shorter than previously estimated lives, or
it will write-off or write-down commercially obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activity of the Group are the operation
of clubbing business and provision of property
management services.

Revenue represents the amount received or
receivable from the sale of beverages and tobacco
products, revenue from other club operations
(including entrance fees, cloakroom fees and event
rental income), sponsorship income and income
arising from provision of property management
services.

7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHEDIPME (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (&)
The amount of each significant category of revenue FEXEWmoBeEHT:

is as follows:

OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
OO OO OO0 OO0 OO OO
Sales of beverages and tobacco products 5 & m N EEE @ 82,694 84,122
Revenue from other club operations Hihgprae g 18,196 18,680
Property management services income  #1% & B IR WA 167,347 —
268,237 102,802
OO0 OO OO0 OOOOOOOOO QOO OO OO OO OO OO0
The Group’s customer base is diversified and REBMNETEARRSZ  REBEEZ
no individual customer had transactions which Z-\ER_T—+F=ZA=+—H
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue during the FFETHEEFENBEREETHORS
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. TRHRBBAREWEAI0% -
Further details regarding the Group's principal FARSEEXIZEXEBZE—TFIE
activities are disclosed below. BBEOT -
(b) Segment reporting (b) DEFHE
Management has determined operating segment EREN2RAEEIELERK
with reference to the reports reviewed by the chief EFMEHNANUNTERRE RS EER
operating decision maker of the Group that are used HRENETLEED I -

to assess the performance and allocate resources.

In the prior years, the chief operating decision RBEFE ARAEBEZIHRE
maker of the Group assessed the performance and FTERRBBKEGMEL WK
allocated the resources of the Group as a whole, as EEFELBARERBIGLAE
all of the Group’s activities were considered to be BXRIRWETERSE - At - 1R
primarily dependent on the operation of clubbing BEABMEREENFRAL S
business in Hong Kong. Therefore, management WRE BEEEBRAR/RAERETHE
considered there was only one operating segment —fEAZLESE - Bt - NBEFE -
under the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating I 25 5 5E B & i 5 E R e

Segments. Accordingly, no segment information and
geographic information were presented for the prior
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

790"

Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has managed its businesses by divisions
since its acquisition of Ningbo AUX Property
Management Services Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX")
on 5 May 2017, which are organised by business
line. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the chief
operating decision maker of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.
Segment Business

Sales of beverages and

tobacco products

Operation of clubbing
business
— Hong Kong

Provision of property
management services

Property management
— the PRC

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the chief operating decision maker
of the Group monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables attributable to the sales activities
of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is "adjusted EBITDA" i.e. "adjusted
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation”, where “interest” is
regarded as including investment income and
"depreciation and amortisation” is regarded
as including impairment losses on non-
current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA
the Group's earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is
provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income and expense from
cash balances and borrowings managed
directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used
by the segments in their operations.

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the chief operating
decision maker of the Group for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended
31 March 2018 is set out below.

B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WmRkoHKE(HF)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DWW/ E(AE)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DEEE ZEREE(HE)
(Continued)
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOO
Operation
of clubbing Property
business — management
Hong Kong — the PRC Total
REEMER YEEE
— &8 — @at
2018 2018 2018
—E-N\E —E-N\E —E-N\&F
$'000 $'000 $'000
TERT TERT FERT
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO O OO O OO0
Revenue from external REMBEFRA
customers and reportable BED Bzl
segment revenue 100,890 167,347 268,237

DOOOODOOOBOOOOBOOOOBOOOOBOOOOBOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OB OO OO OO OO SO OO OO0

Reportable segment (loss)/ A& DS

profit (adjusted EBITDA) B),/ B8R (KH
ZEBITDA) (7,753) 24,835 17,082
OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO
Interest income from bank RITF SF B WA

deposits 4 932 936
Interest expense FERX (16) = (16)
Depreciation and amortisation V- D% ] (9,677) (7,808) (17,485)
Impairment losses on property, #% - BERH &

plant and equipment A E A (6,427) — (6,427)
Reportable segment assets AHREIHEE 38,487 336,078 374,565
Additions to non-current FAREFRRE S

segment assets during the year  $8& & (i)

(note) 2,358 136,365 138,723
Reportable segment liabilities T #H% 5 HEE 23,157 108,780 131,937
OOOOOOOOOIOOIIOIOOIKIOIOOIIOKS OO OO OO OO OO OO OO SO OO OO OO
Note: Additions to non-current segment assets consist Bt REFRRDHOBEEEBERE

of additions to property, plant and equipment, Mk BELREB BREE
intangible assets and goodwill, including additions REE  piEREERRERA
arising from the acquisition of Ningbo AUX (see note EEZEE(RMEE25) -

25).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BmERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(CAE TR R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) DEBWE (4F)
(i) THEZ Wz - B FHE

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment

B BERBEZHEK

revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities

QOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO0

2018
—E-N\F
$'000
FER
QOO IO OIS OO OO
Revenue W &=
Reportable segment revenue and consolidated A #R 4 2 26Uk 25 & 4R & W =5
revenue (note 4(a)) (Kt 5E4(@)) 268,237

QOGO OOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OGO OO0 G OO OO OO G OO O OO OO GO OO OO0

Profit or loss R Y F =]
Reportable segment profit derived from the REAEEINEZF Z A

Group's external customers & #B i 17,082
Other revenue Eh W 4,050
Depreciation and amortisation PrE R #H (17,536)
Finance costs B & KA (1,484)
Impairment losses on property, plant and ME - BEKZREREEE

equipment (6,427)
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBBREERE

expenses (16,246)
Consolidated loss before taxation BRI aEE (20,561)

QOGO OOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO0 G OO OO OO G OO QOO OO OGO OO OO0

Assets BE

Reportable segment assets ARESHEE 374,565
Deferred tax assets RIETIE A & 1,498
Unallocated head office and corporate assets 773 Bt 48 &6 J2 1b 2 f 32 55,587
Consolidated total assets FEAERE 431,650

QOOOOO OGO OO OO OO OO OO O OO O OO0

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Liabilities =R

Reportable segment liabilities ARENHEE 131,937
Current taxation BV EA 754 18 3,479
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEAR 18,280
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 7 % ic 48 26 & 1b 2 f 2 126,144
Consolidated total liabilities FEREMARE 279,840

QOBOOOOOOOOOOBOOEOOOOOOOBOOBOOO OO OOBOD OO OO OO OO O OO O OGO OO OO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information
about the geographical location of (i) the
Group's revenue from external customers
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill.
The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant
and equipment, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of
intangible assets and goodwill.

B

RoBBE (&)

D EBIRE (F)
(iii) 1 EH

TRINEBBEOAEBEHRINER
BEPMEG e R (A KB
¥ BEMSRE BEEER
BEMMELREZERN - TP
TE b 15 3% P EE fH AR 7% s B WX
EMEWE D o ME - BE

REME  BEFRRDEE
ZBUEMNEEZ BRI
HoRBEEERBEMS -
RAED R EEHME -

QOO OOOOOO OO OGO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO GOOOO GO OO0

Revenue Specified
from external non-current
customers assets
R’NBEFE 4 E I
FrEL{E W 2 REBEE
2018 2018
—E-N\HF —E-N\HF
$'000 $'000
FAT FAT
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (FTEH) 100,890 12,506
Mainland China A 167,347 135,330
268,237 147,836

QOBOOOOOOOBOOEODOOOOOBLOO OO OO OOOOBOBODOO OO OB OO OO GO OO OO OO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BmERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(CAE TR R)

5 OTHER REVENUE 5 Htks

B

OOOOOOODOOOOOODOOODOOODIOOOOOODIOOODOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

SOOI OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
$'000 $'000
FExT FHET

DOOOOOOOOOOOOOODIOOOOOODOOOODOOOIOOODOOOIOOIOOOIO O SOOI OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OGO OO0

Bank interest income H|ITH B M A 944 14
Commission income Hal A — 142
Income from available-for-sale financial At ESREE 2B A

assets 768 —
Government grants (note) BT 48 B (7 ) 1,814 —
Others HAtb 524 —

4,050 156

OO OO OO O OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOO00

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Note: Government grants mainly represent unconditional discretionary B AL - TR 4 B E B 4 M 75 T DR AT 4 B 4R A O B 1K
financial support from local municipal government authorities. HRIBET B -

6 OTHER NET LOSS 6 HMtEEZFHE

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

OO OO OO OO O OO0 O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOO0

2018 2017
—®-N\F —T—tfF
$'000 $'000
FH FHT

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OO OO OO0 OO OO0 OO OOO OO OO0 OO OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOO0

Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE - BEL&EEE
equipment 4 90
Net foreign exchange loss ME N & 1R F R 6,366 —

6,370 90

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOLOOOOOOOOOLOOOOLOOOOLO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO SO SO OO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTERR)
7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7 BREAEBRE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: REAMEESNRTSEIE:
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$'000 $'000
FHET FHET
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOO

(a) Finance costs (a) ®WERE
Interest on loan from controlling REERRKRREK
shareholder Z A E 1,468 —
Finance charges on obligations BMEHEREZHRE
under finance lease & A 16 —
1,484 —
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOHOOHOOOHOOOOOOOOOHOOOOOOOOOOH OO SOOI OO OO SOOI OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRRK
Contributions to defined AEMHFRIK
contribution retirement plans FT &I 3K 13,912 702
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENMEMEF 93,366 24,404

107,278 25,106

OOV OOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OCCOOOOO OO OO0

(c) Other items () HtbER

Depreciation e 10,477 10,335
Amortisation B 7,059 —
Impairment losses on trade 2 5 rE W kI8 R E & B

receivables (note 17(b)) (K1 & 17(b) 1,488 —
Impairment losses on property, plant M- BERZERE

and equipment &1 6,427 5,130
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S B % A

— audit services — BZRB 2,746 1,440

— non-audit services — EBFZRE 184 1,833
Operating lease charges: minimum KEHEEBR:

lease payments — property SEBEERK

rentals —WEHEE 29,725 33,728
Cost of inventories sold (note 16(b)) BEEFEKA

(Kt £ 16(b)) 22,068 23,749

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OGOV OOV OGO OO OO OOO OO OO GOOOOOOOOO G OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO GO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HAeBEHZXTPHWFAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Income tax expense in the consolidated (a) HMEBBRXTHAEHEIIE:
statement of profit or loss represents:

QOGO

OOOOOOOSOOOOBOOOOBODHOOOOGOBOROOOOOODO OO OO

2018 2017
==\ & —E—tF
$'000 $'000

TH T FHET

QOO OB OGO OSB!

OOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOH

Current tax — the PRC ENEARiIE — FE

Provision for the year FERE 6,582 —
Deferred tax IE FE B 18
Origination and reversal of temporary ERNEEEARED
differences (1,626) 1,687
4,956 1,687

OO OO0 OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements for
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, as the
subsidiaries of the Group either sustained a loss for
taxation purpose or their unused tax losses were
sufficient to cover their estimated assessable profits.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,
the PRC's statutory income tax rate is 25%.

Among the branches of Ningbo AUX in the PRC,
the Chengdu Branch was entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15% under the Enterprise Income Tax
Preference Policies for the Western Development.
The directors are of the view that it is highly
probable that the Chengdu Branch will entitle the
same preferential tax rate and 15% is adopted in
estimating the tax provision for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin lIslands ("BVI”), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.

MR AEENHBERAR R EERN
MEEBEIRE  KHEBEHHRE
BAHREBRUEEEGTER R
A MEBEEZZT-N\FR_T—tF
“A=t+—HLEFEIXARAREEH
BREARE SR SR L EE -

REBEFECEMEVL  PEAE
PSR R 25% °

ERRTHRFE 2D AR
RE D ARIRIE AR BN X
IEHEERRERZTAISHNE
BEREX -EFAR/RBOARAREA
AR FARKEER KL KA15%
NEABE—T—-\F=A=1+—H
IEFEZBIRE S -

RERSHESMNEBRELES (X
BREZESDAMEER  NEHE
BERZFAAERBNETAME
B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HREeBEHEZTDHAEMH(E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAREFEMNHEBERIRE
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: EBEEEMNT:
QOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$'000 $'000
FHET FHET
QOO OOOOOO OOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOO
Loss before taxation BR 75 A E 1B (20,561) (27,116)
QOO OOOOOO OOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOO
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BREAIEENZEBIE
calculated at the rates applicable (RBAREE R R
to profits/losses in the jurisdictions BB E AR X
concerned FE) (1,602) (4,474)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TABFE 2B
g 3,517 1,659
Tax effect of non-taxable income RV =N B2 (33) (©)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not FABRANEFERE
recognised in prior years but utilised REOAREBARIAEIE
during the year CORTR S A (6) (84)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary REREREZEN
differences Gk (624) 1,004
Reversal of deferred tax assets recognised MAAFEEERAIE L
in prior years MIEEEREND " 1,758
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRBABIEEE
recognised BT E 4,696 1,808
Tax effect of profits subject to preferential =X BB B X 7 &
tax rate in the PRC MeBBe2 (1,005) —
Others H Al 13 19
Actual tax expense ERTIARX 4,956 1,687

QOO OO GO OGO OO0 OO OO OGO O OO OO OO OO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BmERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(CAE TR R)

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed with reference to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

9 EEHMN

218

ENANY

=
LN

BB RNEEDISE383(NE R AF (KE
FMEER) RO B2 EERNE = H B
AR -

OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO

2018
—B-N\f

Salaries, Retirement

Directors’ allowances Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses contributions Total

& RER

BEzHe & METEA B EHER mzt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FTET TET FTET TERT TET

OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO0

Chairman and executive director TERHTES

Zheng Jiang 20T 1,666 — — — 1,666
Executive directors BITES

Chan Hon Ki BREHE = 1,330 125 18 1,473
Chen Huajuan BR 2 15 = — — = —
Shen Guoying B E = = e o =
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors

Poon Chiu Kwok ERR 150 - — - 150
Bau Siu Fung e 150 - - — 150
Lou Aidong 2EH 150 - i - 150
Total @5t 2,116 1,330 125 18 3,589

OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO SO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AT RR)
9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 9 EEHME)
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO
2017
2+
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances scheme
fees and benefits  contributions Total
He EZER
521 ‘A R EIMR @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FET FHEL FHEL FEx
BOCOOIIOOOOOOOOOOOOIIIOOIOOOOOOOOGOOOOOOOOOOOIIIOOBIIDOCAAOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO IOPAOOBIOOOIOBBIOOIOIOOOOOOEE
Chairman and executive director ITERYTES
Zheng Jiang T 300 - — 300
Executive directors BTES
Chan Hon Ki WRE E — 1,183 18 1,201
Chen Huajuan PR 1A — — — —
Shen Guoying S — — — —
Independent non-executive directors BIFHUTES
Poon Chiu Kwok E R 150 — — 150
Bau Siu Fung RN 150 — — 150
Lou Aidong 28R 150 — — 150
Total 5t 750 1,183 18 1,951

QOGO OEODOOOD OO OGO OO OO OO0

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
of them (2017: one) was a director whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of other four (2017: four) individuals are as follows:

10

OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

REFMAL

TEReFMALP - BAL(CETE—+
F:—R)REF EF R M EFH
BoHmmOA(CTE—LF mWRE)ALH
FMaEeT

OOBOOOOOOBOBOOOOOOBOB OO OB OO OB OO SOOI O OO OGO OO
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
$'000 $'000
TET FET

OOBOOOOOOBOBOOOOOOBOB OO OB OO OB OO SOOI O OO OGO OO
Salaries and other emoluments He hEM e 8,915 4,925
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TE 4T 300 1,440
Retirement scheme contributions RAIRET &3 72 72
9,287 6,437

OOOOOOODOOOOOODOOODOOODIOOOOOODIOOODOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

/(S)K AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 ESH M A L (&)

(CONTINUED)
The emoluments of the four (2017: four) individuals with WA (CE—EF mE)&e m i ATH
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: HMENTHEENA :
OO OO OO OO OO KOO OO OO OO OO0
2018 2017
= S —T—tF
QOO OO OO QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO QOO0
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T o 2
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,0007% 7T 3 1
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T e 1
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,0007% 7T 1 —
OO OO OO OO OO GO OO OO OO0
11 LOSS PER SHARE 1M1 EREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREAXERE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on BREREBIDENRRAT L BRE
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders = AR FE {5 B9 18 25,517,000 7T (—F
of the Company of $25,517,000 (2017: $28,803,000) —-4F : 28,803,000/ 7T) R FNE B
and the weighted average number of 354,765,000 178 3 A hn e T35 % #81.354,765,000 A%
(2017: 314,984,000) ordinary shares in issue during T — 4 : 314,984,0000% ) 5+ & Fr
the year, calculated as follows: 5 mEt&EWT:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZE R F R #
OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —ET—+F
‘000 ‘000
TR T %
OO OO OO0 OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of M4 ] # E 217 & i A%
the year 314,984 314,984
Effect of placing of new shares REFROBTE
(note 24(b)) (Bt z224(b)) 39,781 —

Weighted average number of ordinary P4 K 89 38 % 048 F
shares at the end of the year B 354,765 314,984

QOO OO OO QOO0 OOOOOOOO OGO OO OO OO OO0

(b) Diluted loss per share (b)y EREBEEFIE
The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss BREEEEEGRAREEMER -
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary L IHERBE_ZE-N\FR_T—L
shares in existence during the years ended 31 March FZA=ZT—BHLFEHIFEE
2018 and 2017. FEEEARK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BmERME

(Expressed in

(PABTTERTR)

Hong Kong dollars)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a)

758

Reconciliation of carrying amount

12 % BERRE

(@) FREEZHIER

QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO0 OO OO OO OO0

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold Motor  Construction
equipment  improvements vehicles in progress Total
HA -£8
k¥  HENERE AE ERIE @5t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FTHET THT FHET THT FHT
BOOCBOOOIIOOOHIGOCIIOOOIGOOOG OISO OIS OIS OO OOI OISO OGS OOGIOOIOOOII OIS OIS OISO OIIOOHIIOONKD
Cost: B
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+EWA—H 24,464 41,079 = = 65,543
Additions NE 1,545 17 2,099 178 3,839
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 25) U B B A R (B 7#25) 1,032 267 43 — 1,342
Disposals & (11,956) (12,468) (36) = (24,460)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 107 15 4 - 126
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=A=+—-H 15,192 28,910 2,110 178 46,390
Accumulated depreciation and RAFERAEER:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—+EWA—H 17,958 21,282 - - 39,240
Charge for the year FRRAZ 2,992 7179 306 - 10,477
Impairment losses (note 12(b)) A BB M E120)) 1,549 4,878 - - 6,427
Written back on disposals 4 B R (11,705) (12,468) ) - (24,180)
Exchange adjustments BB 20 1 - - 31
At 31 March 2018
10,814 20,882 299 = 31,995
Net book value: BRI FE
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F
=A=+—-H 4,378 8,028 1,811 178 14,395
BOOOOBOOOBOOOGBGOOOIOOOIGOOOG OIS OISO OGO OIS GORAIS OIS GO ORI OO OIOOOIIOORIS OIS OIS OIS OISO
Cost: B
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE-X"FMA—-H 24,900 43,648 — — 68,548
Additions NE 104 856 — — 960
Disposals HE (540) (1,865) — — (2,405)
Adjustments (note 12(c)) AR H12() — (1,560) — — (1,560)
At 31 March 2017
24,464 41,079 — — 65,543
Accumulated depreciation and Rt HERBERKSE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2016 RZE-X"FMUA—-A 13,998 12,084 — — 26,082
Charge for the year FARAZ 3,667 6,668 — — 10,335
Impairment losses (note 12(b)) HEBE W Z120) 735 4,395 — — 5,130
Written back on disposals o B R (442) (1,865) — — (2,307)
At 31 March 2017 RZF—tF
=A=t+—-H 17958 21,282 — — 39,240
Net book value: BREEE:
At 31 March 2017 KTt %
=A=t+—H 6,506 19,797 — — 26,303

QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 OO OO OO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment losses

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the operation
of clubbing business in Hong Kong was loss-making.
The Group assessed the recoverable amount of the
relevant property, plant and equipment and as a
result the carrying amount of such assets was written
down to their recoverable amount of $10,525,000
(2017: $Nil). Accordingly, impairment losses of
$6,427,000 (2017: $5,130,000) were recognised
as "impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The estimates of recoverable amount were
based on value in use model, in which the cash
flows were discounted using a discount rate of 11%
(2017: 11%). The discount rate used was pre-tax
and reflected specific risks relating to the clubbing
business.

Adjustments of leasehold improvements

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
negotiated with a contractor and mutually agreed
to revise the contract price in respect of the
renovations of a club completed during the year
ended 31 March 2015, and resulting in the reversal of
other payables amounting to $1,560,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2017. The cost and the carrying
amount of the relevant leasehold improvements were
adjusted by $1,560,000 accordingly.

Asset held under finance lease

The Group leases a motor vehicle under a finance
lease expiring in 5 years. At the end of the lease
term the Group has the option to purchase the
leased motor vehicle at a price deemed to be a
bargain purchase option. The lease does not include
contingent rentals.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, addition to
property, plant and equipment financed by a finance
lease was $835,000 (2017: $Nil). At the end of the
reporting period, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment held under finance lease was
$814,000 (2017: $Nil).

12 Y% BERREE)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BEEE

BHE - Z-N\E=A=1+—801%
B BEEMEBKEELEBRE-
AEBEFHHEEDE  BERERE
HA R El©5E - MRS EENR
B R = E AT Uk B 4 %810,525,000
BL(ZE—tF TB L) BE
&5 186,427,000 T(Z T — £ F:
5,130,000/ 70) B HE R iR A B m K
NIERBIME  BERERERER
Ble Al & M EFTTIREE B
BERAFE HPHRESRER
NP RE(ZE—EF 1%
e MAIMREY AT A E kbt &
SREKEBNEERR -

HEWELEZAR
HE-_Z—+tHF=-A=+—HILHF
B AEERH-—ZEABEER &
FREE—_ET-—RF=ZA=+—8
FHFEERN—BeMcEERT
BIANE ERHE_T—+F
A=t HALFEMEMENRK
T8 #% [@]1,560,000/% ¢ - 18T E W)
EEEORAREERBEITAERE
1,560,000/ JT °

REMEHEREZEE
AEEHEAZBREHE(RAFAE
MFENAE - REEHR  ~E
BAEENRE AR ERBEEE
MERBECHEMNIE - ZHE
YABFEHAAESR -

BHE_ T \F=ZA=+—RHI*F
B REME BERKBEMAZ
8350008 THEEMERE (—F—
tFFTET)c RBEHK - BRI
MEHEREME BELREN
AR B /814,000 T (ZE—tF:
TETT) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A TR R)
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BFEE
OO OO OO OO SOOI OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO SOOI
Property
management
contracts
and related
Customer customer
relationships relationships Total
MEEBRAE
RiEBEEE
CEL T B it
$'000 $'000 $'000
FiET FiET FiE T
OO OO OO OO SOOI OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO SOOI
Cost: R
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 RZZE—A~FWHA—HBRK
—ET—t+F=A=+—H 1,174 — 1,174
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZE—+FWmOA—A 1174 — 1,174
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 25) U Bt 8 A =) (47 7#25) — 76,339 76,339
Exchange adjustments [ 8 & — 4,160 4,160
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H 1174 80,499 81,673
Accumulated amortisation: E4 £
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 RZZE—X"FMA—HK
—E—+tF=A=+—H 1,174 — 1,174
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMA—H 1,174 — 1,174
Charge for the year FAMRL — 7,059 7,059
Exchange adjustments BE & — 320 320
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=H=1+—H 1,174 7,379 8,553
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—N\F=A=+—H — 73,120 73,120
OO OO OO OO SOOI OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO SOOI
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=A=+—H — — —
OO OO OO OO SOOI OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO SOOI
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AFEHEERAFTAGEERRNITE
"depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated REESHIN -

statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2018, the property management contracts RZZE-N\F=A=+—RH YEREESE
and related customer relationships have a remaining useful RREEAEFPFERNRAAERESRA
life of 9.1 years. 914 o

/4‘ ) AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

14 GOODWILL 14 BHE

QOO OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO0
$'000
FExT
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO0
Cost: N
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZT—RFEA—H "
—E—+HF=ZfA=+—HRK
—E—+HFWMWA—A —
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 25) g B B B8 A &) (BT 2%.25) 57,203
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 8 B 3,118
At 31 March 2018 R-E-NF=R=+—H 60,321

QOGO OGO OO OGO OO OO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO GO OO0

Impairment test for CGU containing goodwill

The goodwill of the Group is allocated to a CGU within
the “property management — the PRC” segment as at
31 March 2018.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value in use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 3% which is
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The growth rate used does not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the CGU
operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount
rate of 21%. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

Based on the results of the impairment testing of goodwill,
in the opinion of the directors, no impairment was
considered necessary for the goodwill as at 31 March
2018.

BEEHENASELCEANRENR
AEERNHER-_ZE-N\F=A=+—H
PEEMEEE—FBEIDBAN—ER
TELEM-

ReESEM 2z KBS BEIERER
BEMEEET - X ERAREEERE
HEZAFHRMBBREZAFRSRE -
BRAFHNESRETE R NE
PR REIRHE - HRITXRBEPNRE
A= TABREYEBERSELE
NELMEERBHRPFHERR - RS
MEBAIT R EN%IER - BT EEXSH
Al WIRBRAARE D B2 B RN E R e

EREBRENSNER EERAYL
mABAR-E—\F=A=+—BNE
£ 1F R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary
unless otherwise stated.

nts

15 RBARAMWKRE

TREHNHAEEXE BEEXEESR
BEAFEZHBRBZHE - K=HIIHA
Sho PR BN ZER BEBK -

BOOOBOOOIIOOOIOGOCIIOOAIIOOOIG OO OIS OGO GO OIS OGO G OIIOOGOOAIIOIIOOIOOOI OIS OGIOOG IO IO IO OIOBPOOPOOBPOOD
Proportion of ownership interest

FEEERLA
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Group's
establishment and issued and effective Held by the  Held by a
Name of company business paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activity
ERRL BRTREMRE FREZ ARH WEAR
ARER AURERHYE BARE R 8 #E ERE
DOOOOOBOOOBOOOOOOOOOGOOOBOOOOOBOOOOGOGOIOGOOOGOOOGOGOIOOOOGOOGOOGOOOBOGOOOGEOSGOGOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
New Pride Corporate Limited BVI 101 shares 100% 100% — Investment holding
ABRAEE 101f% REZR
Asiatic Century Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% — 100%  Provision of administrative services
Mt RERAA B 1% to group companies
MEBRRREITHERRS
Cheerful Raise Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% — 100%  Provision of administrative services
BAERATF Bk 1 to group companies
AEBEARRKTKER RS
Club Kingdom The Central Group Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% — 100%  Holding of trademarks
i 11 BERR
Sure Wise Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000,100 shares 100% — 100%  Operation of clubbing business
EREEERRT R 10,000,1004% BEGMER
Success Deal Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% — 100%  Operation of clubbing business
i 11 BEGMER
Starry Chance Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% — 100%  Investment holding
BEEFRAA B 1H& RERR
Ningbo AUX* The PRC 5,000,000 shares 100% — 100%  Provision of property management
ERATH* H 5,000,000 services
RENEEERE

* Ningbo AUX is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the PRC.

/4:2 AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BmERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AT RR)
16 INVENTORIES 16 =&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) HMEVEBEMRRRNEFEEE:

(b)

financial position comprise:

QOO OOOOOOOOOOOIOID OO OO OO OO QOO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
$'000 $'000
FHET FHET
QOO OOQOOOO OOOOO OO
Beverages and other operating items for # @ M Efb & FTEKH
club operations LETAE 2,937 4,348
Consumables for provision of property 2 1% & E R A
management services B FE 53 —
2,990 4,348
OOOOO OOOOOOOOOIOOIOOOIO OO OO SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOO
The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BAABIVHABENTFESLHE
recognised as an expense and included in profit a1
or loss is as follows:
OO OO OO OO OO
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —ET—+F
$'000 $'000
THET FAT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 22,068 23,749

OO OO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A TR R)
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EZRHEHMEWRNRE
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
$'000 $'000
FET FET
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOO
Trade receivables (note) B 5 W IE (B i) 45,718 609
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREEE (WAL 17(b)
(note 17(b)) (3,675) —
42,043 609
Deposits, prepayments and other e - TENHIE R EHME R
receivables A 26,229 16,514
68,272 17123

OOV OOOOOOO OO OO OO QOO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOO O OO OO OO0

Note: At 31 March 2018, trade receivables of the Group included
amounts due from related parties of $9,197,000 (2017: $Nil). The
amounts represent property management fee receivables arisen
in the ordinary course of business.

The amount of the Group's deposits, prepayments and
other receivables expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense after more than one year is $11,591,000 (2017:
$12,341,000), which mainly represents rental deposits
for clubs of the Group. All of the other trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense within one year.

/47/[ AUX International Holdings Limited / B 3% £f B2 BB R AR

it R-E-NF=ZRA=+—H AKEZEHE
R IR B 9 e MR B 5 05 5ROR9,197,0005% T (=
TLF BB ZAERRBEEKB
BHEEZREMEELE -

REBEEHEN —FRWEISKERBAX
MiE®  BRFRBEBREMGEKFIENSE
£11,591,000 7T (ZZ —+4F : 12,341,000
B EEBEAEEGHOESES -
FTEHREME S R Et R RIBS BN —
FRWEHERBAL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in

Hong Kong dollars)

(A TR R)
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ESZRHEMEWRKIEGE)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Ageing analysis (a) BRER DM
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing HEREHKR FAESREME
analysis of trade receivables (which are included in WHRIENEZ R RIBREZEH
trade and other receivables), based on the invoice UENBRREEREENORERRS TN
date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as I
follows:

(b)

OOOOOOOIOIOOIIOIOOIKIOKIOOIKIOKIOOIIOKIOIO OO OO SOOI OO0 OO
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—+tF
$'000 $'000
TER FHET
OO OO OO OO OO OO0 OO0
Within 1 month 18 A A 10,974 609
Over 1 month to 3 months BREEA=3EA 10,775 —
Over 3 months to 6 months B A3 ME A =6 A 6,779 —
Over 6 months to 1 year HiBoE AxE —F 7,373 —
Over 1 year —FE 6,142 —
42,043 609
OO OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOB OO OO O OO0
Further details on the Group's credit policy are set AEEEFEERENE -—SFHEHL
out in note 26(a). B 5E26(a) ©
Impairment of trade receivables (b) EBEZEWHRERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables B5RWFIAZ REBEERER
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Rk MIEXEERERDAA
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is IRRBI AT BEMERIE - TR T - R
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written BEEEEERESERRIBME -
off against trade receivables directly (see note 2(j)(i). (R B 5E20)())
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FARBBEZSHOT:

during the year is as follows:

OOOOOOOIOIOOIIOIOOIKIOKIOOIKIOKIOOIIOKIOIO OO OO SOOI OO0 OO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
$'000 $'000
THERT FHET

OOOOOOOIOOIIOIIIIOIIOOOO OO OO OOOOOO RGO GOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
At the beginning of the year RE A T —
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 25) U B8 BT 8 N |) (M 72 25) 2,303 —
Impairment loss recognised RO E B 18 1,488 —
Uncollectible amounts written off bR T ok (296) —
Exchange adjustments M 5, 8 B 180 —
At the end of the year RER 3,675 —

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OO OO OO OO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in

Hong Kong dollars)

(AT RR)
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ESRHEHMERREGE)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued) (b) EBEZEWFEREGE)
At 31 March 2018, trade receivables of $9,817,000 R-E—N\EFE=Z=A=+—H8 E5E
(2017: $Nil) were individually determined to be U FX 189,817,000 T (—ZF — ¢
impaired. The individually impaired receivables ZAL)EENEEABREKS -
related to customers that were in financial difficulties 1B B ek 1 pE U =78 B B A B 7S R Bk
and management assessed that only a portion MEFEYW BEEEENMG 1BH
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. EEoEIRHIEE BWE o F I
Consequently, allowances for doubtful debts of 7N &= [ RE R4 Bl R BR #4455 3,675,000
$3,675,000 (2017: $Nil) were recognised. BL(ZE—tF ZEHET) -
() Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) XRFBEEZEWRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not WEWEARENESEWZIERE
considered to be impaired are as follows: BofrmT:

770"

QOO OO OO OO OGO OO OO OO OGO OO OO OO OO

2018 2017
== _ )\ & —E—tF
$'000 $'000
THET FAT
OOOOOOOIOIOOIOIDOIIOKIOOIIOKIOOIOOIOOIOO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOIOOO OO OO OO
Within 1 month past due # 8 R E A 10,974 609
Over 1 month to 3 months past due @ H =31 H 10,775 —
Over 3 months past due i1 HA A B 31E A 14,152 —
35,901 609
OO OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOB OO O OO0
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired B 45 380 HR I 4 R0 (8 A JE Uk ZROIE B 3T
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there HEEZNLHENZELEERPAER -

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired BB ERBRENERRIAEZ S
relate to a number of independent customers that HEAEBERAER FEETHNBE L
have a good track record with the Group. Based REFEME BEBALR TEE
on past experience, management believes that no Wiz BARZELEHRIELDRER
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of B THRNEESEEZTEETRED
these balances as there has not been a significant MZEERIDE R A REUE -

change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

18 AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY

The amount due from a related party disclosed with
reference to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

Name of entity

EEEE

Relationship
B &

Terms of the advance
T RIBE B K
— duration and repayment terms
— HAPR K i BHA
— interest rate
— Rl
— security/guarantee

— W ER

Balance of the advance
AN RIEBE AR
— at 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017
—RZE—RNFNUNA—H ZE—+tF=A=+—H
;rE=ZFT—+tFMA—H
— at 31 March 2018
—RZE-N\F=ZA=+—H

Maximum balance outstanding
RS EREENER
— during 2018
—RZT—N\F
— during 2017
—RZE—LtF

Note: According to the employment contract between Mr. Wong and
the Group, Mr. Wong received a monthly advanced bonus of
$180,000 which the entitlement is subject to a profit target of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. As at 31 March 2018 and 2017,
such advanced bonuses were repayable to the Group as the profit

targets were not fulfilled.

There were no amounts due but unpaid, nor any provision
made against the principal amount at 31 March 2018 and
2017. The amount as at 31 March 2018 was fully settled in
April 2018.

18

FE W — B BA R T TR

ZBEBNAIEHIFE383(1)(d) iE A7) (#
EEEFTER) RBIEIEIHE R EU—
HEAB T RIEOT

Mr. Wong Hei Yan (“"Mr. Wong")
ERCEE(ELRED

Key management personnel
TEERAER

See note below
gl
Interest-free
%8

Nil

i3

$2,160,000
2,160,0007% 7T

$540,000
540,0007% 7T

$2,700,000
2,700,0007% 7T
$4,320,000
4,320,0007% 7T

M BRERELAEEAEERITIZEBED &k
4 & A A REUCHUIE 1 fE 41180,000/8 7T+ 1fE AR
RAETHBRREZSFER - RZT—
NERZT—tF=A=+—8 BR&EHME
B RENK WEBABENEALAAEETAE
o

RoE—NFR-F-—tF=A=t—8 "
I B 048 K R BOR B A S 1R
AR - R-F—\FZA=+—BHK
HER-E—/\FMABHRLS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BmERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19 BEeRBRESZEYURBEMBEAER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EEH
(a) The analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as (a) HEeRELEEYINWOT:
follows:

B N R R IR TII GOOBOOOBOOOD

2018 2017
SN —E—tF
$'000 $'000
5 F# 5

B N R R IR TII GOOBOOOBOOOD

Deposits with banks and cash in hand R{I7TFERLKFEE 210,514 94,589

Restricted bank deposits (note (i) X BRI 4R 17 77 3K (K 22 () (2,726) —

Pledged bank deposits (note (i) B8 15 8R 17 15 3R (AT 22 (i) (1,000) (1,000)

Cash and cash equivalents in the mAERERERNRE R

consolidated cash flow statement ReEEY 206,788 93,589

B R R R O S O I T

Notes: et -

(i) Restricted bank deposits represent the cash collected from (i) SZRHEBITERIERDEETE $=
property occupants/owners for the repair and maintenance WRHAE ERERKRRTEFEZ#
fund maintained by Ningbo AUX. ERREES -

(i) Pledged bank deposits are pledged to secure banking (i) BEEMBRITFEREKER - ARFE
services relating to credit card sale arrangement. ERREERHZRITRY -

(i) Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group, (i) MZE-NFZA=+—H AEEHD
$146,296,000 (2017: $Nil) are denominated in Renminbi ReRRASEEYT B5146,296,000
at 31 March 2018. Renminbi is not a freely convertible BLT(ZZE—+F :TET) UAREK
currency and the remittance of funds out of mainland FHE - ARETEAEHEBRNE -
China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the MESHPEAEERAIFEAR
Government of the PRC. F 0 B AT S EE BR o

/4( S) AUX International Holdings Limited / B 3% £f B2 BB R AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19 BEeRBRESZEYURBEMBEAER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER(E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (by METBHFELEBENEER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TRHFRREEREZSIEED
liabilities from financing activities, including both BEEY  EERSMIERSE -
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from BETHMELANEBERRERE
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows E%Eﬁ%XEE%J/|L§H%§#$E Y
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the GEBREeRERNDEZEREEH
Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash FMEENBHESRENZETAE -

flows from financing activities.

QOOOOOOBOOOOBOOOOBOOH OO OGO OO QOO OGO OO OO OGO OO OO OOBODO OO OO OO OO OO OOOC OO

Loan from
controlling Finance
shareholder lease Total
REEZER
BREREX MEHRE et
$'000 $'000 $'000

FHETT FHET FET
(Note 22) (Note 21)
(B 522 (B zE21)

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OGO G OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO

At 1 April 2017 R-B—tEmA-A — — —
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRELE:
Proceeds from loan from controlling R R E SR PTG IE

shareholder 117,481 — 117,481
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid B & EH & K EXRKR — (56) (56)
Interest element of finance lease rentals ENEERER 2NN EKG

paid — (16) (16)
Interest on loan from controlling shareholder BfREZERKRREFTNFE

paid (1,468) - (1,468)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSRELHATE 116,013 72 115941
Exchange adjustments ERAE 6,364 — 6,364
Other changes: Hitt 28 :
New finance lease (note 27) NmERE(HF21) — 835 835
Finance charges on obligations under fE G AN X

finance lease (note /(a)) (Kt it 7(a) — 16 16
Interest on loan from controlling shareholder 3R &2 i% I% & 5 2 % &

(note 7(a)) (Htiz7a) 1,468 — 1,468
Total other changes Hip B EH@m 1,468 851 2,319
At 31 March 2018 R-—ZE-NE=A=+—-AH 123,845 779 124,624

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OGO OO OO OOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

20

700

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ES R EHMESRE

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
2018 2017
=2-N\E —E—tF
$'000 $'000
TERT FHET

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
Trade creditors 2 5N RIE 17,455 3,960
Receipts in advance T8 W R I8 47,573 5,609

Deposits received from property REMERXRRE/

occupants/owners EFWEmIES 16,035 —
Receipts on behalf of residents REERKFZK 14,375 —
Amounts due to related parties JE B & 5 ;RIB 2,114 —
Other payables and accrued charges Hih I RIBE R EFER 35,905 22,928
133,457 32,497

OOV OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO QOO OO0

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be BHREES R EMENRIBEER —FR

settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

Receipts in advance represent the prepayments from
customers in respect of the membership schemes
operated by the Group and prepayments from property

REBRERRBRALIZERERE -

BRRARERASBEEENGEE
i 1) JER 2 U B ) TR SR IR DA B it 3 38
RIEMMEEP /% TR TENFIA -

occupants/owners in respect of property management
services.

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, ERNEAEFRELAEEAR 28 REAR
interest-free and repayable within one year. E 8

BERSHR FABEZREMENKIA
BE S RN FIRRER AN RE 20

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade creditors (which are included in trade and other

payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows: N
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO OO O OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
$'000 $'000
TET FET
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
Within 3 months 3E AR 7,120 1,887
Over 3 months to 6 months BR3ME A =6 A 3,942 2,073
Over 6 months to 1 year Him6ME A= —F 5,944 —
Over 1 year —FLLE 449 —
17,455 3,960

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OGOV OOV O OOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO GO G OO O OO OO GO OO OO OO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BmERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(CAE TR R)

21 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 21

At 31 March 2018, the Group had obligations under
finance lease repayable as follows:

BMEHERE

R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—H AEEER
MEMEAEMNT

OOOOOOOOOOO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO

2018
—E-N\%
Present

value of the Total
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BEESE REHEE
NRHBRE EE L
$'000 $'000
FHET FHET

2017
—T—tfF
Present
value of the Total
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments

REHEE HKEHEE
MHRmRE SRR
$'000 $'000
TR TR

OOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO O OO OO OO OO

Within 1 year —FR 161 189 — —
After 1 year but within  —F & ERFNR

2 years 168 189 — —
After 2 years but within —F & ERFR

5 years 450 471 — —

618 660 — —

779 849 — —

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO

Less: total future AR RF BT AR

interest expenses (70) —
Present value of lease T E&E&ERE

obligations 779 —

OOOOOOO OO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO OO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(CAE TR R)

22 LOAN FROM CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER 22 XKEBEERRKREER

The loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at 2% per annum ZERAERE  BFFNR2UTELH
and repayable in August 2022. RZEBEZ__FNANARNEER -

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 SEMBMRRPBHAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) HMEMBRRERPWEBHIERE:
of financial position represents:

QOO OO OO OO OO0

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
$'000 $'000
TERT FET

Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax FRHPBE P EFTEH
for the year BiE 6,582 —

Provisional PRC Corporate Income Tax B TEZ T E %

paid g (3,103) —
3,479 —

OO OO OO0

OOSOBEOOOOOBOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

FHHS SR AR B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(CAE TR R)

23

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

23

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised
(i) Movement of each component of deferred
tax liabilities/(assets)

The components of deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

SOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO SO

Depreciation
(in excess
of)/less than
the related
depreciation

allowances  Tax losses

(BH),/HR
ERAERE
HiTE

$'000

EEREARE:

Deferred tax arising
from:

REMBRRRPOAEHR(E)

(b)

ERABELEHEAME (HAE)
(i) BEHEAEE (EE)EHAZL
i k-

RER B IS HIOR R A HE R AR
ERBAE, (BE)AKRED

QOGO

Impairment
losses Amortisation
on trade Accrued  of intangible
receivables expenses assets Total
ESREEHA
HEEER BB BREESH B3t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THAT TET THAT TEL

At 1 April 2016 RZZE-R"EMA—H (1,488) (905) - - - (2,393)
Charged to profit or loss R Bz Mk 1,625 62 — — — 1,687
At 31 March 2017 and RZZ—t#
1 April 2017 ZA=t+-8R
—E-tFMA-A 137 (843) - - - (706)
Acquisition of subsidiary i B It & 2 &) (47 77.25)
(note 25) 43 — (590) (329) 19,085 18,209
(Credited)/charged to profit R B (st A),/ Mk
or loss (184) 413 (250) 160 (1,765) (1,626)
Exchange adjustments [ER GRS = = (43) (12) 960 905
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
ZA=1+-8 (4) (430) (883) (181) 18,280 16,782

OO OO GO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO GO SO OO O OO OO OO OO OO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23

REMBRRRPOFTED(F

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised
(Continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated

statement of financial position

(b)

ERAELHAEE (EE)(H)

(ii) A& R HM TR

OOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO GO OGO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO O OO OO OO0

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt fF
$'000 $'000
THER FHET
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO O GG OOOOO BOOOOOOOOO OO0
Net deferred tax assets recognised  M4RE B #5 Ak L &R 1A
in the consolidated statement of BRNELERIEER
financial position EFE (1,498) (706)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 4R & B 75 #k i &k 1
in the consolidated statement of BRNELHIES
financial position &FE 18,280 —
16,782 (706)
QOO OO OISO OO OO OO GO OO OO OSBGOSO OO OO OO0
() Deferred tax assets not recognised () AEREEREEZEE
The Group has not recognised deferred tax REEN BB R HIEREERDE
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and T 5 B 5% 18 = A ) B RF 2= $H63,586,000
temporary differences arising from property, plant B (ZE—+1F : 35,161,000 7T)
and equipment amounting to $63,586,000 (2017 514,982,000/ 7T (= & — + F :
$35,161,000) and $14,982,000 (2017: $18,238,000) 18,238,000/ 7T ) lERIEEHIA K E
respectively as it is not probable that future taxable REAABEEER T RAIEERERT
profits against which such losses and temporary BMNBEZERINEREZEAH
differences can be utilised will be available in the BT - BBRMITHE - BIEE
relevant entities. The tax losses do not expire under BrgEm -
current tax legislation.
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised d KREIELEBREE

At 31 March 2018, temporary differences relating to
undistributed profits of a subsidiary amounted to
$82,006,000 (2017: $Nil). No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of this subsidiary and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R

R—_EBE—\F=ZA=+—8 B#—
b 8 A Rl R 9k ' B 0 ET B = 58
82,006,000/ T (=T — L 4: %
HTT) o ARANA BE G RZ M B AR
ZERBBRWEEEECZE M
BETERNEERY IR - BB H B %
Z R BB 0 A FE S A & B 18 I f AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a)

Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and

closing balances of each component of the Group's

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

24 BEXRf##E

(a)

AN 2E

AR B AR A HE a5 1 & (8 4B K RE 0 B
NEMREHROE RN R A ER
BEXR - FUEFRMEARAE

statement of changes in equity. Details of the PliEZAKT Y Z B FITHI W
changes in the Company’s individual components of Ik
equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company FAAY-T|
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO0
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
B B4R E 2itER Fo
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TEL TET FET TEL
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO OO0
Balance at 1 April 2016 R-B-AEMA-BH&ES 3,150 123,542 (17,527) 109,165
Change in equity for the year ended HBZ-Z—tF=A=+-H
31 March 2017: tEEREED:
Loss and total comprehensive income for FREB L 2E N E L HE
the year — — (9,632) (9,632)
Balance at 31 March 2017 and R-ZE-+tE=A=+-HEK
1 April 2017 “E-tEMA-BNEH 3,150 123,542 (27,159) 99,533
Changes in equity for the year ended HZ-ZT—-N\F=f=+-H
31 March 2018: LEEREED:
Loss and total comprehensive income for FREEL 2 E N B8
the year - - (9,536) (9,536)
Placing of new shares (note 24(b)) fic & 3R 17 (M 22 24() 600 53,458 - 54,058
Balance at 31 March 2018 R-ZZ-NE=ZA=+-H
0 3,750 177,000 (36,695) 144,055

QOSOOOOBOOEOOOOBO OGO OGO OO OO OO OO QOO OO G OBOBOBO SOOI OOO SO SO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BT ER)
24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 24 EXR#HE(E)
(b) Share capital (b) MWK
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO0, OO OO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
&g =] ok % 7 #1 B &5
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
B T TR TET

QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO

Authorised: EIE

Ordinary shares of $0.01 &R EE0.01/8
each JT B9 5 AR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO GO O OO O OO0 GO OO OO OO0 OO OO OO OO OO OO0

Ordinary shares, issued E&ER » B 81T

and fully paid: RER:
At the beginning of the R F %)

year 314,984 3,150 314,984 3,150
Placing of new shares Bic & #7 i 9 60,000 600 — —
At the end of the year R F XK 374,984 3,750 314,984 3,150
B e S R L S R S S e e
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TR A AR BEWERATRE IR
dividends as declared from time to time and are e WEERARAIAREG LT
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the —REITRR - RARBRBE
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with EmMs MEETBRMLRZE -
regard to the Company’s residual assets.
On 2 August 2017, 60,000,000 new shares were R-ZE—+F)\A=-H " RBREBHAE
issued to the placees at the placing price of $0.91 per ZE—tFLATEZRERZE
share, with net proceeds amounting to $54,058,000, EREBRBEM0NE T ZEEEBM
pursuant to the placing agreement dated 10 July e A 3£4760,000,0008 5 k9 - AT
2017. 15 5B ¥ 88 /354,058,000/% T ©

/’1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in

(CAE TR R)

Hong Kong dollars)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of
the Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of the business.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the cash paid

for the acquisition of subsidiaries contributed

by the former controlling shareholder in

September 2010.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign

exchange differences arising from the

translation of the financial statements of

foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with

in accordance with the accounting policies set

out in note 2(t).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate amounts
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company were $140,305,000
(2017: $96,383,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

24 EXNKfEE (A

(c)

(d)

(e)

BENTEEREN

(i) BKRGEE
B dn 4t (B 38 AR A R B D T B e
AT R B A A0 U HR B FT 15 3K
HHEZR - REFASHE AT
R AR R R i B R AT
DIRTARBEBRER - HEEEE
BEEDKEEERR  AAF
BERENRN —REBBREFE
MR ER -

BEX#E
BEARFEBREAERBERR -
Z-ZFNARKBENEAR
IR E -

(i)

EL#E
EREEeERRERIINER
MBEHERMELNAEINEE
B REBREBENE2ME
SRTRRHETT ©

(iii)

] 4 2R 5 18
R-EBE-NF=ZA=+—08  fq#
DPERTFARABEBRENEHRES
$£140,305,0007% T (= & — £ F:
96,383,000 7T) °

EXER
AEEEREANEZERARE
AEBERBHBLERD  BBA
ERBKFERERNRREEEAR
NEaBRARGRE #ESRXE
HREERESEMESFEATRK
Mas e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ASR R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
e

(CAE TR R)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

25

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its
debt position. The Group's strategy was to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and
ensure there was adequate working capital to service
its debt obligations. At 31 March 2018 and 2017,
the ratio of the Group's total liabilities over its total
assets was 65% and 22% respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 5 May 2017, Starry Chance Limited, a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire equity

interest in Ningbo AUX from Ningbo AUX Real Estate
Co., Ltd, an entity controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang

the ultimate controlling shareholder, at a consideration

of RMB153,000,000 (equivalent to $179,691,000). The
purchase consideration has been settled in cash.

Acquisition of Ningbo AUX would enable the Group to

gain access to the PRC's property management industry
and diversify the revenue stream and investment portfolio.

/(/5 S') AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R

24 EXNKfEE (A

25

(e)

EXREE(H)

AEEEGY EMERREERLE
ARE UHEFREERKFH
AR T AT B3R A 5 = AR SR 2] ¥ £
MERBREARANERERZEZ
M#sTE YTERELEBRN
BCHBEARRE -

AEEER2EZHEBRRERE
AR o ANEEE KBS SR s BB
HRE—EFENCE  LRRE
ERAMEEESEEREEEH - &
SER-_ZF-\ER-_FT—tF=A
ST HNBAERUNEBEEL
5 Rl 765% K% 22% °

ARBHEEFMERRHTZ I
S A0 #) B AN AR TE PRI o

B KB E
R-E—tFRARA  ARAZEMBL

mE

EBRARARE A K%153,000,000

7T (FB & m179,691,0007% 7T) B 5 )i 2 55 Hf
EXARAF(HREERBERBET R
EEHNER KEEKERTNE MK
#-ZBERECUARSHEE -

U 8 2 B e i i AN SR B AR B YY)
XERTERBRUARREREEHEA
ZHAE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

25 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 25 WiEKMIE AT (&)

BEURBABNEEFBEZAFERER
SEEEHEHINMOT:

The fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and the
goodwill arising from the transaction are as follows:

QOBOOEGOOOOOOOODOBOOSOOOOOOOD OO SO OBOOGODOOOOOODOBOOD OB OBOOOOOOBOOOBOOOBODO OO OGO OO OO

Fair value
at date of
acquisition
RUiEEE 2
AFE
$'000
FAT

OOOOOOOIOOOOID OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0
Property, plant and equipment WM BEREZE 1,342
Intangible asset EEE 76,339
Deferred tax assets REFIAE B 876
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ENEREE 105,700
Inventories FE 54
Trade and other receivables B 5N E A E IR TE 37,937
Restricted bank deposits PR HIER 1T 1E 3 1,741
Cash and cash equivalents BehBReEEY 2,552
Trade and other payables B 5K E M E A (80,517)
Current taxation B AR %% 18 (4,451)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE (19,085)
Net identifiable assets acquired BB AR EEFE 122,488
Goodwill Bk 57,203
179,691

QOGO OGO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO GO OO0

Note: Trade and other receivables comprised gross contractual amounts et ESREMERREBRIEEKAOBE
due of $40,240,000, of which impairment loss of $2,303,000 was 40,240,000/ 7T + H 12,303,000/ T AWK EER
recognised at the date of acquisition. R LSREEE -

REBERRRTNRERBASFEY
ReRbFRzoM:

Analysis of net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of acquisition of Ningbo AUX:

QOOOO OO OO OGO OO OO O OO O OO OO OGO OO OO OO OO O OOOOOO OO OO OO OO0

$'000
FAT

QOO OO OO OO OO OGO OO GO OO OO OO OO OGO OGO OGO OO OO OO0
Cash consideration BeRE (179,691)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEReREEEY 2,552

Net cash outflow Wem b F5E (177,139)

QOGO OGO OO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO GO OO0
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

25

26

700

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

The Group incurred transaction costs of $3,525,000 for
this acquisition, which had been recognised as “other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2017.

From the date of acquisition to 31 March 2018, Ningbo
AUX contributed revenue of $167,347,000 and profit of
$21,673,000 to the Group. Had the acquisition taken place
on 1 April 2017, the consolidated revenue and loss for
the year of the Group would have been $284,447,000 and
$21,978,000 respectively.

The above goodwill is attributable to the work force of
Ningbo AUX and the potential growth of the property
management industry in the PRC.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk in respect of trade receivables in
connection with clubbing business is limited as the
balances are due from financial institutions with
high individual credit rating. For trade receivables in
connection with provision of property management
services, individual credit evaluations are performed
on corporate customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers, except for the
deposits received from the property occupants/
owners to secure property management services
provided by the Group.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R

25

26

W BB M AT ('

AEBEpLZ U B E & R H KA 3,525,000/
T BEZT—EF=A=t—HLFE
REABRaRERRHMEEMX]-

AkBEREBE-_Z—-)\F=A=+—8"
=% B % HT A 7K & B § B1167,347,00075
TT 2 W A K 21,673,000 7T 2 FIE o Ik
BEEN_ZT—tFMWA—H#ET AIK
EERFRANGRERAREBEBES A
284,447,000/ 7T 521,978,000 7t °

R R R 5 M0 B ) R
ENEERTROBERER -

BHEEREEREMIARNTE

AEBER-—REBBETELEE AP
B  MEREEWER - TXHBAARE
BHEZSARNKALASEEEZSE
[, e P 5 P ) B 765 L B R TSR B D o

(a) FEERK
REENEERBRIEREARES
FEMEWRGE - EBEEBCHEE
ERET GRS EERZEEEN
[ & o

HEMXBAERNESRWFAN
EERBRERAERN REAL/EWKAE
HRIOREEEFREOSREE -
HEREHDEEERBEERNES
FEYW R IR & - 8 BIE BT b0 8t
HEREBB - T2BENARTPAE
T HWEFBHEEHETPUAEE
Hil 2 B RR s MR S M B (T RE
TEEEFPZBEEHNMREFPZE
FENKEERFENHBER - — &
maE - NEBEYLEEFFREEA
W EMEERETRERAE
B Y B ERSGMBRNEZES
BR S
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group, as
where there is credit exposure to the Group, it is
spread over a diversified portfolio of customers.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Further quantitative
disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions or
controlling shareholder to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

26 BIEAREEREHIAEAFE

=t

(48

(a)

(b)

FERR A
AEBEZEERBRIEXEETFE
IR E T E  MIEXEPELEM
ETEXBERAETE - AR AEE
mEHNEERRYBRZTIENE
FHE BAKEIEEREHRE
R -

AEBEYEEHREMSELAEEE
AEEERRBNER ZANEER
R A& A P HMRR KRS ZTB
BEMNKREE - BB ANEEEER
BESLEMEBRKREELENEER
R E— 2 BB N E
17 »

RBESER
AEERENKEERAERALZ
ReEE ERASEHRNEHR
ERNEEERENEHRREFZ LR
HE s £ 50 1B 3B TR E Y IR MK F B
QAR RRAESEHE - A5E
MBEREREERRDESFTS
DHERER T R IR & W ENKA
TESHBBRIERBRRN T A
HEERE RREHLEHRD
BEe®mK-

/67
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 & #

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO0

AREEREHIAAFE

REE SRR E)
TRITAEBEeRmBENREH
ROHRTEQIHBER - L HRIE
BRRTHERERE(BREEAOF
(k> mEBEZE  AIRERSHR
B9 BN EA A ) St & B F B R K AR
SEAWERNRNZEBHME
H

2018
Z¥-N\FE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRTRRAESRE
Within More than More than Carrying
1 year 1 year but 2 years but amount at
or on less than less than 31 March
demand 2 years 5 years Total 2018
i
—E-N\F
— Ry —FUEE WEUALE EH=1—
RER WEUTF  HEUTF #t HEREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FTERT THET THT FTET THET
Trade and other payables &5 & H i fE{+
b 133,457 — = 133,457 133,457
Obligations under finance & & 78 & & &
lease 189 189 471 849 779
Loan from controlling REERARER
shareholder g% 2,477 2,477 129,722 134,676 123,845
136,123 2,666 130,193 268,982 258,081

QOGO OO OO OGO OGO GO OO OO OGO OO OO0

At 31 March 2017, all of the Group's financial
liabilities were carried at amounts not materially
different from their contractual undiscounted cash
flows as all the financial liabilities are with maturities
within one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.

)
/62 AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R
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AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTERTR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 B ¥EMEERESRIAATEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(¢) Interest rate risk () FEEp
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REBEFERREZESBNHE
loan from controlling shareholder as disclosed in RFEBERBERBREER - LE
note 22. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the ERTHNERSASEEBRATE
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group does MERR AEBEWERB ST
not use financial derivatives to hedge against the ETEERFEERER - TRIHA
interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as SEEEEETZHMNEBR RN
monitored by management is set out in the following E—+tF=ZA=1+—H Xr&EEL
table. The Group did not have any interest-bearing EAMGEEE/BE -

assets/liabilities as at 31 March 2017.

QOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OOOOO OO OO QOO OO0

2018
2%
Effective
interest rate $'000

1S TERT
QOO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO
Fixed rate borrowings: BEEFEEE:
Obligations under finance lease BB E R IE 3.8% 779
Loan from controlling shareholder KEERBRRE R 2.0% 123,845
Total borrowings FEREE 124,624
QOO QOO OO OO O OO OO OO QOO O OO OO0
The change in interest rate would not impact the HRAEETEFEUARTESE
Group's profit and equity as the Group does not WERESTRE MEXEH TG
hold any fixed rate instruments which are measured EAEENMBEMER - Bt X
at fair value. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has mERFERBAGPREEZ DN o

been presented.
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AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 B ¥EMEERESRIAATEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (d) E®@EE
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily REBERENIIERREZRE I
through borrowings and cash balances that are SNEGHEMNBR R 248 - BN
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency RGMBREEZEEEAIINZ
other than the functional currency of the operations BEEGE - BitEBREENEE X
to which the transactions relate. The currency giving ERHARE o

rise to this risk is Renminbi.

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i)
The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), translated using
the spot rate at the year end date. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.

H 7 & %
TRAMRNEER RS HRA
MR AR ERIGE BRI
SIS BERHENCHEREE
FEEMELENEERR - B
22BN BEREBRAFE
BHBEHEXZE /BT (B
TR - EEINE 2 B
BHRRAAEE2NERME
EHEBRANTAHE -

QOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO O OO OO OO OO0 OO O OO OO O OO O OO OO O OO OO O OO OO OO

QOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO0 GO QOO OO OO O OO OO OO0

2018 Exposure to
foreign currency
(expressed in HKD)
Renminbi
—E-N\F

H B & % = B

(B4 78 7T 5 7R )
ARE

$'000

THET

Cash at bank and in hand BITEREFERS 14
Loan from controlling shareholder REERBKRREK (123,845)
Exposure arising from recognised assets BEHEREEN EE

and liabilities PTEE & 2 BB (123,831)

QOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO O OO OO OO0 OO QOO OGO O OO O OO OGO OO OGO G OO OO

hJ
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AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)
At 31 March 2017, the Group's businesses
were principally conducted in HKD and most
of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities
were denominated in HKD. Accordingly, the
directors considered the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk was not significant.
(iij)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's loss after tax (and
accumulated losses) that would arise if
foreign exchange rate to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant.

OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOG OGO OO OO O OO OO OO OO

26

BHRBREEREMIAAFE

(%)

d) E#*
(i)

(i)

B B (48)

] 7 & % e (4E)
RZE—t&F=ZA=+—8"
AEBMEBETZEN B TE

T AEENRBOINERE
ENABEAETTEE - Bt -
EER/AEEEBOINER
I TEKX -

HEED I
TRIFBRAE L AR E
BRI TE  WRBEHEA
o5 B T 1 5K L 0 10 P R 0 3%
AHHIE 8 - A R B A A

B(REFER)IELRNAD

BEB -

2018
—E-N\F
Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after
in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated
rate losses
$'000
B LEH A At BB
("~ %) E4
FExT
OO OO OO OO OO OO OO
Renminbi AR 10% (12,383)
(10)% 12,383

OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOG OGO OO OO O OO OO OO OO

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated
into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

ERABEOMBERIERZTIE
BV A EThRE E M 5T B 1)
AEBERBRVEZERER
BREPRBTEXLBRE

TR E -
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AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

(e)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group, if
any, which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group's presentation currency.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 March 2018 and 2017.

27 COMMITMENTS

70

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March

2018 not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

26 BIEAREEREHIAEAFE
(#)
d) SRR
(ii) BUEE S (4E)
BRMESITRRER #FHE
AREF EREERREL
KEESEBMBEINERRY S
MIE SESEMUEES
Sk fE 5 2 T e M 5B 2 e
R EUWEE () o kST
BIE S INE £ 2 B R R i
BRAERY 25| S EREE
TEE
(e) 2A¥E
R-E—N\ER-E—+F=A=+
— B AN B IR AR A ok 6 R A
EremMIAFEAERERATEY
mEARER
27 EIE

R-ZZE-NFE=ZA=+—HEKXEHE
EUBRBR2EREAENT:

(a)

QOO OO GO OO O GO0 OGO OGO O OO OO GO OO0

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—+F
$'000 $'000
FHET FET

QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 OO OO OO0
Contracted for SRS 96 —
Authorised but not contracted for BREBRITLD 9,822 —
9,918 —

QOO OO OO OO OGO OO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO0

e

) AUX International Holdings Limited / B 5% #7 B B¢ 2 R G IR 2 &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTERR)
27 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 27 EYE (&)

(b) At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum (b)) R=B-—NE=Z=A=+-—-80 '#BEBF
lease payments under non-cancellable operating AHEREHINENRRFER
leases are payable as follows: SHRENT:
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOIIIIIO OGO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tfF

$'000 $'000

FTERT FET
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOIIIIIOOOO OGO OO SOOI OB OO OO

Within 1 year —FR 21,476 25,128

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRELFAN 5,347 15,533

26,823 40,661
OO OO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO O OO0
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of REBERBLEHENHEEZEY X -
properties held under operating leases. The leases BO—MRNTRB—ZEZRF Al T

typically run for an initial period of one to five years BH - BHAOBHTBEXAES -

with an option to renew the lease. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EABEAI RS

(a) Key management personnel emoluments (a) FEEBEEAEHTMH
Emoluments for key management personnel, TEEBEBAENFH(BEXINT
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors Mo BRI AR B EE R0
as disclosed in note 9 and the highest paid BN e ESNRE) N
employees as disclosed in note 10, are as follows: T~

QOO OO GO OO O OO0 OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO GO OO0

2018 2017
=i —E—+tF
$'000 $'000
FHET BT
OO OO O OO0 OOOOOO! OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
Salaries and other short-term employee ¥ & R EMETHIEERE
benefits ol 16,471 8,836
Retirement scheme contributions RAIRET &5k 211 95
16,682 8,931
OGO OO OO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO
Total remuneration is disclosed in “staff costs” (see FMaEEENE TR AR W=
note 7(b)). 7(b)) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EXKBEAIXZ (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) HEMBEHLIZXRS
In addition to the transactions and balances BAFEHEREMIBHOAPEEZR
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, SNEEGIN  ANEE T
the Group entered into the following material related THERRSG :

party transactions:

QOO OO GO OGO OO0 OO OO OO OO OO OGO OO GO OO0

2018 2017
—B-\F —T—t%
$'000 $'000
T8 T

QOO OO

OOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOBEOOOOO OO OO

Property management services income  REEH A 2WEEE

from related parties P 75 U A 40,497 —
Repair and maintenance expenses for BN — 2R
motor vehicles paid/payable to a FEBEEREERX
related party 125 —
OOOOOOOIOIOOIOIDOIIOKIOOIIOKIOOIOOIOOIOO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOIOO SOOI OO
(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (¢ HEEXZEEMNLTRAZER
connected transactions %
Among the property management services income X HEE28 (b) FTHR B R B RAHE 5 2
from related parties disclosed in note 28(b) above, Y1 E IR R WA - 35,513,000/
$35,513,000 constituted continuing connected TUER TR AIEUAZRTRE 23%
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing BRAERS - RIE FMRAEUAE
Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of BRERBEEERESTERER#F
the Listing Rules are provided in section “Continuing BHEERS] L -
Connected Transactions” of the Report of the
directors.
In addition, the repair and maintenance expenses AN - XK FE280)Fr I E 2 B
for motor vehicles paid/payable to a related party BN — 2T R R
disclosed in note 28(b) above constituted connected SR ETRNFEUAZRATE Z
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the MERS AT BARZERHE
Listing Rules but are exempt from the disclosure REBUATOEMIGIE N 2 K &K
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, as oo R EST LR FEUAE
they are below the de minimis threshold under Rules ZHRBERTE -
14A.76(1).
29 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 29 FEHFREXH
At 31 March 2018, the Group had payables for purchase RZBE-N\EF=A=1+—10 FAEEHREE
of property, plant and equipment of $2,611,000 (2017: M - BB K 3R Y R IR /32,611,000
$2,611,000) which was included in trade and other BIL(ZE—+F 2,611,000 L) W E
payables. MANE G K EH AR FRIE -
In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2017, there o BHE-FT—+F=ZA=+—HILF
was an adjustment of property, plant and equipment - WEREMBEWMEMT20MEE - K
and trade and other payables amounting to $1,560,000 NAAENE BMERREAREIRE
as disclosed in note 12(c) to the consolidated financial b & 1 FXTE 1,560,000 JT ©
statements.
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A BmERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(CAE TR R)

30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 30

FINANCIAL POSITION

DE Bz BB R

OO OO OO OO OO OO OOOO OO
2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—tF
$'000 $'000
FE& T FET
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 OOOOO OO
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BERZE 13 64
Investments in subsidiaries RIEBRARIMNIEE 10,412 10,402
10,425 10,466
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H fth B 5118 249 216
Amounts due from subsidiaries I NGIE 85,261 18,126
Cash at bank and in hand RITHERRFBERAS 54,148 75,669
139,658 94,011
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H h & 5K IR 2,254 2,71
Amount due to a subsidiary e — B AR KA 3,774 2,233
6,028 4,944
Net current assets REBEEFE 133,630 89,067
NET ASSETS EEFE 144,055 99,533

DOBOOOOOOOBOOGOOOO OO OO O SO OBOBOOOOOOO:

DOOOOOSOOOOOODOOHOO OO OB OO OO

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEERARFHE

Share capital 5% 2 3,750 3,150
Reserves ER 140,305 96,383
TOTAL EQUITY EEEEE 144,055 99,533

QOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO0

OGO OO
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AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

31 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 31
PARTY

At 31 March 2018, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to be
Huiri Limited and Ze Hui Limited respectively, both are
incorporated in the BVI and beneficially owned by Mr.
Zheng Jian Jiang. None of these parties produces financial
statements available for public use.

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

32

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2018 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

BEERRREREA

RZZE-NF=A=1t—H EFRAL
SENEEB AR REERERAR®D R
REAZERBERARNMEEERAF - MW
B R A G  5R B B X B SRR A L S R &
BIRGEnHA ZRFERLEREA
FRFERO B RE

BE-_F-Nf=ZA=+—H
IE 5 B C AR 1R E Y B
A HAEARZEBNATER R

BETEZSHBEHRRAY TS
REBERMEZIRIER] - FrIERRRE
ZEEE AR EARRERBE_T—
NEZA=Z+-RALFERRER  IE
MBEBERMERBZLFER - A EAR
BB UTRAREREERBNARE
Al e

DOBOOCOOEGOOOOOOOOOOOOOBO OO SOOI OO SO O OO OO OO OGO G OOO OGO OO OO OO OO SO

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or
after

RUTEHR &
MENEFHEEX

QOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OGO OO OGO OO OO OO OO G OOO O OO OO0 OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BRMBREEAFEOREH T A

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

EEVBREENBISRAGEFLEAZKA

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

ER(BERYERERBLRBQ)FRRI)EZLENKE

HKFRS 16, Leases
BEREMBRELERFI6RHEE

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

BB (BB ERERBLRBQ)ERRFEHEEN T EE

///~( ) AUX International Holdings Limited / REGEARERERAT

1 January 2018
—E-NF—H—H

1 January 2018
—E-NF—H—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\¥—H—H

1 January 2019
—Z-N¥—-H—H

1 January 2019
—Z-N¥—-H—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
e

FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

32

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed
for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon
the initial adoption of the standards may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standards are initially applied
in the Group's interim financial report for the six months
ending 30 September 2018. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standards are initially applied in that
financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement of
financial assets, including the measurement of impairment
for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive
changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group
plans to use the exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018.
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's
financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at
(1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") and (3) fair value through
other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI”). The
classification is determined based on the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets
and the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost will
continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or
a lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the
asset and the facts and circumstances. The Group
expects that the application of the expected credit
loss model will result in earlier recognition of credit
losses while the transition adjustment to be made
upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 9 will not be
material.

~ ? AUX International Holdings Limited / B33 BBl 12 R R A R
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting for
revenue from construction contracts.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect
transition method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at
1 April 2018. Based on the assessment completed to
date, the Group expects the adoption of HKFRS 15 will
not have material impact to the revenue recognition of its
operation of clubbing business and provision of property
management services.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(i), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessee.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e.
at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After
initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will
recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply
this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue
to be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

o~
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in
note 27(b), at 31 March 2018 the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to $26,823,000 for properties, a portion of which
is payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine
the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16,
after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16
and the effects of discounting.

The Group does not intend to adopt HKFRS 16 before its
effective date of 1 January 2019.
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Five Year Financial Summary
TFEMBEHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and liabilities ASEBEAFETBFENEEALEE - #

of the Group for the five financial years is as follows: ahkBEHENT:
RESULTS E

Year ended 31 March
BE=-A=-+—-BLEE

QOO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOO QOO OO O OO OO OO0

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —F-tF —F-R"F —FT-IFf —FT-@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHETL FHETL FET FEL
QOO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0
Revenue U 25 268,237 102,802 128,964 154,864 159,138
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BrELAT(B518) /% F (19,077) (27,116) (27,029) 2,832 2,850
Income tax (expense)/credit FEm(Ex),/ He (4,956) (1,687) 1,047 (2,936) (3,435)
Loss for the year FRER (25,517) (28,803) (25,982) (104) (585)

OO OO OO OO OO OO OO O OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥&E - B RIEZRER
INTERESTS

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=1+—HLFE

QOGO OGO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 G OO OO O OO0 OO OGO OO OGO OO0

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—EB-N\f —F—+F _—FB-AF _—F-nFf _FT-@EOF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHT TERT FAET FET TET
OORHHORIHIOHIHIORHIOHIOHIOIHIAHHIIHIHIIHIIHIIHHAIII OISO ORI IO IR
Total Assets BERE 431,650 145,229 173,644 207,100 198,675
Total Liabilities BERE (279,840) (32,497) (32,109) (40,556) (34,203)
151,810 112,732 141,535 166,544 164,472
OOOIOHIORIIOHIIAIONHIONHIOIIHIAHIAIHIIIRIIRIINIIIIOOOOIHIHIOIIHIIAIIOOOOIIIIIOIIHIHIOIRIIIOOIIIHIIOIOIIIOOOD

Equity attributable to: ATAT ML e

~ Owners of the Company ~ XRAFHEBA 151,810 112,732 141,535 166,544 164,472

OO OO OO OO OO OO O SO OO O OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0
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